


Although an investment holding company incorporated in South Africa Tradehold owns no

material assets in this country Its investments are mainly in the British property and retail

sectors Through its wholly-owned subsidiary Tradegro it holds 85% in the Moorgarth group

of property companies and 159% in the retail group Tnstore Moorgarth manages 15 miJion

portfolio of retail commercial and industrial buildings while Instores principal activity is

variety retailing conducted through several chains operating network of more than 300

outlets in the United Kingdom and Northern Ireland

Tradegro Limited Moorgarth Instore plc

159%

Contents

Positioning

Chairmans statement and review of operations

Corporate governance

Shareholders profile Stock exchange transactions

Notice to shareholders

Shareholders information

Secretarial certification

Directorate and administration

Annual financial statements

Proxy

10

10

11

12

loose insert

ANNUAL
REPORT

2010

TRADEHOLD

Positioning



TRADEHOLD

Chairmans statement

review of operations

Operating environment

The operating environment was marked by the

return of fragile stability to world financial

markets Although the UK economy is now officially

out of recession there remains considerable

difference of opinion as to whether this improvement

will continue to gain pace or remain at its current

modest level The improvement has been in the real

estate market in respect of prime space primarily

in the retail and office sectors due to the return of

investment and pension funds to the property

market The secondary market in which Moorgarth

is mainly active has remained at more or less the

same level throughout the reporting period with no

real signs of significant recovery in the foreseeable

future

Financial results

In the year to February 2010 Tradehold posted net

profit of 24 million after suffering net loss of

19.5 million in the previous year That loss was

brought about mainly by the impairment of assets

due to the recession then at its peak in the United

Kingdom The turnaround in the 2010 financial year

was largely due to revaluation of the companys

investments in the light of an improving economic

climate It included fair-value adjustment of the

investment in UBS AG of 1.5 million 2009 loss of

59 million as weil as an adjustment of 210 million

in the value of the Moorgarth investment property

portfolio 2009 loss of 275 million

Tradehold reported total revenue of 4.8 million

compared to 234 millionin 2009 This translated

into trading profit of 224 millionas against

trading loss of 60 million in 2009 Headline

earnings per share were 04p 2009 loss of 3lp
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Thtal assets increased slightly from 2709 million

to 2729 million but cash and cash equivalents were

substantiaily lower at 2106 million

2009 2162 million

Moorgarth Properties

The Moorgarth group focuses on property investment

and development asset management and property

consultancy During the 12 months of the review

period the group continued to battle negative market

sentiment and the challenging conditions that

dominated the property sector External funding

remained highly restricted with loans seldom

exceeding 65% of propertys value thereby

inhibiting considerably the activities of leveraged

property companies such as Moorgarth Not only

funding but also supply proved to be major

constraint as owners withheld their properties

unwilling as they were to sell into depressed

market through fear of suffering losses

During the review period owners of conunercial

and retail properties had to contend with tenant

losses brought about by liquidations and bankrupt

cies At the same time the level of incentives demand

ed by those tenants remaining in some instances

increased three to four times Due to the compound

ing effect of reduced rents and higher incentives

many development projects were put on hold as they

were judged to be no longer financially viable

In the prevailing market conditions management

did not strive to grow the portfolio and the number

of properties owned remained unchanged at 22

The focus was rather on enhancing the value of the

existing portfolio through refurbishment and on

minlinising vacant space by vigorously seeking new

tenants During the year the group managed to



convert an after-tax loss of 93 million into an

after-tax profit of 208 million The value of the

portfolio increased from 2464 million to 2515 million

Outlook

The free fall in property values that characterised

the two previous financial years has been halted

after reaching historic lows and the market seems

to find itself at the start of an upward curve This is

not expected to gain much momentum initially with

banks and other financial institutions remaining

very careful in making development funding

available The year ahead is therefore expected to be

as challenging as 2010 and no significant increase

is foreseen in the current level of activity

Acknowledgments

Despite the improvement in the economic climate

in the UK the markets nevertheless remained

extremely challenging and as board we consider

it significant achievement to have brought about

the turnaround that saw Tradehold return to profita

bility For this want to thank my fellow directors as

well as the management and staff of the companies

in which we are invested for their dedication and

bellef that our goals could be attained

Wiese

Chairman

Luxembourg 21 May 2010

Despite the improvementin the economic climate

in the UK the markets nevertheless remained

extremely challenging and as board we consider

it significant achievement to have brought about

the turnaround that saw Tradehold return to

profitability
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Corporate governance

Tradehold is an investment holding company It has

no operating assets in South Africa and its principal

business consists of an indirect interest of 159% in

the UK based Instore plc Instore and an 85%

interest in the property-owning Moorgarth group of

companies also based in the United Kingdom It

conducts treasury activity as well through its

wholly-owned finance company Tradegro S.d r.l.

Moorgarth is managed by independent profes

sional managers in the IlK reporting to fradehold

executive board member Mr Moore The Moorgarth

executive attends the Tradehold board meetings

twice year to report on the performance and

strategy of the business

Tradehold is committed to the highest standards

of corporate governance

King Code

Tradehold applied the King Code 2002 King II

during the financial yeat The King Code of

Governance Principles for South Africa 2009

King Ill which was published on September

2009 only took effect from March 2010 King III

increased the emphasis on several topics including

the audit committee sustainability particularly inte

grated reporting and disclosure risk management

internal audit and IT governance Tradeholds com

pliance with and application of King III will be

fully reported on in the next annual report

Tradehold did not comply with all the King II

requirements the major areas of non-compliance

being

the composition of the board there are four board

members of whom only two are non-executive

the chairman is not an independent non-executive

board member

In the view of the directors the size of the company

and the nature of its operations do not warrant

board and the associated costs consisting of more

than the current four members In order for

Tradehold to adhere to King II in respect of the

above the board will have to be expanded and recon

stituted and that is not considered justifiable at

present

The board has considered the need for the

company to have an internal audit function and

concluded that it was not required given the size

and operations of the business
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Tradehold board of directors

The Tradehold board at year-end consisted of four

directors two of whom were executive and two

independent non-executive The chairman of the

board is an executive director and the finance

director is the other executive director

Apart from an audit committee there are no

other board conunittees The board as whole is

responsible for the appointment of new directors

The board meets at least twice year and more

often when required The board met twice during the

year The attendance of the directors is shown below

MrCMoore
Mr Stassen

MrllllWTroskie

DrCllWiese

The company maintains an appropriate level of

d.irectors and officers insurance in respect of legal

action against its directors

All directors are subject to the retirement and

re-election provisions of the articles of association

which require one-third of the directors to retire and

if they so wish to offer themselves for re-election at

each annual general meeting New directors are

obliged to retire and offer themselves for re-election

at the first annual general meeting following their

appointment

The policy of the group is to compensate

employees on basis comparable with similar

organisations taking into consideration performance

as an important factor in determining the remunera

tion of executive directors and senior management

Non-executive directors fees are based on their

relative contributions to the activities of the board

Details of the remuneration and participation of

directors in share incentive schemes appears

elsewhere in the annual report

Integrity and ethics

Group companies at all times endeavour to maintain

the highest standard of integrity in dealing with

their dents staff the authorities shareholders

suppliers and the investor community and in doing

so to ensure the largest measure of credibility trust

and stability Structures and procedures are in place

for the reporting of unethical behaviour The chief

executive of each group company is responsible for

ethical behaviour within his organisation

The board is of the opinion that high level of

standards was being maintained by the group and it



is not aware of any instances of unethical behaviour

during the year ended 28 February 2010

Internal control

The board has overall responsibility for the

companys internal control and for reviewing its

effectiveness Internal control measures can only

manage not eliminate the risk of failure to achieve

business objectives and can only provide reasonable

not absolute assurances against material misstate

ment or loss

The principal elements of internal control include

An annual budgeting system integrating both

financial and operational budgets together with

identification of the risks inherent in each

operating area These budgets are subject to

board approval

Regular consideration by the board of actual

results compared with budgets and forecasts

together with the preparation of revised forecasts

whenever deemed necessary

Confirmation to the board of any changes in

business operational and financial risk in each

area of the business

Clearly defined authorisation procedures for

capital expenditure established by the board

Authority levels designated to subsidiary board

directors and senior management

Statement of responsibility

by the board of directors

The directors are responsible for the preparation

integrity and fair presentation of the annual

financial statements of Tradehold Limited and its

subsidiaries The annual financial statements

presented on pages 15 to 52 have been prepared in

accordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards and include amounts based on judgments

and estimates made by management

In preparing the annual financial statements the

directors believe they used the most appropriate

accounting policies consistently applied and

supported by reasonable and prudent judgments

and estimates and that all Statements of Generally

Accepted Accounting Practice that they consider to

be applicable have been followed The directors are

satisfied that the financial statements comply with

International Financial Reporting Standards and the

information contained therein fairly presents the

results of operations for the year and the financial

position of the group at year-end

The directors have responsibility for ensuring

that accounting records are kept The accounting

records should disclose with reasonable accuracy

the financial position of the companies to enable

the directors to ensure that the financial statements

comply with the relevant legislation

The going-concern basis has been adopted in

preparing the financial statements The directors

have no reason to believe that the group or any

company within the group will not be going

concerns in the foreseeable future based on forecasts

and available cash resources These financial

statements support the viability of the company and

the group

The groups external auditors Pricewaterhouse

Coopers Inc audited the annual financial statements

and their report is presented on page 14
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Shareholdersprofile

Percentage Number

Number of of share- of shares

holders holders held

Indirect

Direct non-

beneficial beneficial

Moore 905 126

CStassen 378376

HRWTroskie -_

CHWiese 1495754 212874438

495 754 214 157 940

Total

2010

905 126

378 376

214 370 192

215 653 694

Total

2009

905 126

378 376

212 531 517

213 815 019

Stock exchange transactions

Number of shares traded 000
Value of shares traded ROOO
Volume of shares traded as of

total issued shares

Market capitalisation ROOO

Share prices for the period cents
Lowest

Average

Highest

Closing
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2010

687

627

22
329 964

25

60

112

95

Percentage

holding

Distribution of shareholders

Nonpublic shareholders

Directors 215 653 694

Participants to share incentive trusts 114 983

excluding directors

Share incentive trust 788 321

10 216556998 623
Public shareholders 899 990 130 773 443 377

Total 908 1000 347330441 1000

Number

of shares Percentage
held holding

Major shareholders
Titan Nominees Pty Ltd 132 861 228 383
Titan Sharedealers Pty Ltd 66 957 014 193
South African Private Equity Trust III 49 769 692 143

Directors interest

At 28 February 2010 the interest of directors in the issued shares in the company were as follows

2009 2008 2007 2006

24822 10306 17807 42211

36542 16952 40058 118663

71 30 51 122
156299 590462 795387 833593

41 112 195 206

147 164 225 281

170 275 259 371

45 170 229 240



Notice to shareholders

Tradehold Limited

Tradehold or the company
JSE code TDH ISIN ZAE000026902

Notice is hereby given that the annual general

meeting of the shareholders of Tradehold will be held

in the boardroom at the head office of Pepkor

Limited 36 Stellenberg Road Parow Industria at

0930 on August 2010 for the purpose of passing

the following resolutions with or without modification

Ordinary resolution number
That the annual financial statements for the year

ended 28 February 2010 including the auditors

report be adopted

Ordinary resolution number
That the directors remuneration of 54 700 be

confirmed

Ordinary resolution number

That the re-appointment of the auditors Pricewater

houseCoopers Inc for the ensuing year be confirmed

and that the audit committee be authorised to deter

mine the auditors terms and remuneration

Ordinary resolution number
That Mr Moore who retires as director in terms

of the articles of association of the company and

being eligible offers hlinself for re-election be

re-appointed Mr Moore is 60 years old and has

B.Conmi degree He has many years experience in

business in South Africa and the United Kingdom

amongst others serving as financial director of

Pepkor Limited and non-executive director of

Shoprite Holdings Limited and Instore plc

Ordinary resolution number

That subject to the provisions of the Companies Act

1973 as amended and the Listings Requirements of

the JSE Limited JSE the directors are hereby

authorised to allot and issue at their discretion all

the remaining authorised but unissued ordinary

shares of 01 cent each in the share capital of the

company for such purposes as they may determine

after setting aside so many shares as may be

required to be allotted and issued by the company

pursuant to the schemes governed by the rules of the

Tradehold Share Incentive Trust

Ordinary resolution number

That subject to the passing of ordinary resolution no

and in accordance with the Listings Requirements of the

JSE the directors are hereby authorised to issue ordi

nary shares of 01 cent each for cash as and when sin-

table situations arise subject to the following conditions

That this authority is valid untll the companys

next annual general meeting provided it shall

not extend beyond 15 months from the date that

this authority is given

That the equity securities which are the subject of

the issue for cash must be of class already in

issue or where this is not the case must be

limited to such securities or rights that are

convertible into class already in issue

That paid press announcement giving full

details including the impact on net asset value

and earnings per share will be published at the

time of any issue representing on cumulative

basis within financial year 5% or more of the

number of ordinary shares in issue prior to the

issue in question

That issues in the aggregate in any one financial

year may not exceed 15% of the companys issued

share capital of specific class of share already in

issue

That in determining the price at which an issue

of ordinary shares may be made in terms of this

authority the maximum discount permitted wifi

be 10% of the weighted average traded price as

determined over the 30 business days prior to the

date that the price of the issue is determined or

agreed by the directors and

That any such issue win only be made to public

shareholders as defined by the Listings Require

ments of the JSE and not to related parties

In terms of the Listings Requirements of the JSE

the approval of 75% majority of the votes cast by

shareholders present or represented by proxy at the

mecting is required for this ordinary resolution to

become effective

Special resolution

Resolved as special resolution that the mandate

given to the company or one of its wholly-owned

subsidiaries providing authorisation by way of

general approval to acquire the companys own

securities upon such terms and conditions and in

such amounts as the directors may from time to time

decide but subject to the provisions of the Companies

Act 1973 as amended the Act and the Listings

Requirements of the JSE be extended subject to the

following terms and conditions

Authorisation be given by the companys articles

of association

Any repurchase of securities must be effected

through the order book operated by the JSE
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Notice to shareholders continued

trading system and done without any prior

understanding or arrangement between the

company and the counter-party

This general authority will be valid until the

companys next annual general meeting provided

that it shall not extend beyond fifteen months

from date of passing of this special resolution

An announcement will be published as soon as

the company has cumulatively repurchased 3%

of the initial number the number of that class

of share in issue at the time that the general

authority is granted of the relevant class of

securities and for each 3% in aggregate of the

initial number of that class acquired thereafter

containing full details of such repurchases

Repurchases by the company in aggregate in any

one financial year may not exceed 20% of the

companys issued share capital as at the date of

passing of this special resolution or 10% of the

companys issued share capital in the case of an

acquisition of shares in the company by

subsidiary of the company

Repurchases may not be made at price greater

than 10% above the weighted average of the

market value of the securities for the five

business days immediately preceding the date

on which the transaction was agreed

Repurchases may not be undertaken by the

company or one of its wholly-owned subsidiaries

during prohibited period unless the company

has share repurchase programme in place

where the dates and quantities of securities to be

traded during the relevant period are fixed not

subject to any variation and full details of the

programme have been disclosed in an announce

ment over SENS prior to the commencement of

the prohibited period

At any point in time the company may only

appoint one agent to effect any repurchase

The company may not enter the market to

proceed with the repurchase of its ordinary

shares until the companys sponsor has confirmed

the adequacy of the companys working capital

for the purpose of undertaking repurchase of

shares in writing to the JSE

The directors intend either to hold the shares

purchased in terms of this authority as treasury

shares or to cancel such shares whichever may be

appropriate at the time of the repurchase of shares

The directors are of the opinion that after consider
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ing the effect of the maximmn repurchase permitted

and for period of 12 months after the date of this

notice of annual general meeting

The company and the group will be able in the

ordinary course of business to pay its debts as

they become due

The assets of the company and the group will be

in excess of the liabillties of the company and the

group the assets and liabilities being recognised

and measured in accordance with the accounting

policies used in the latest audited annual financial

statements

The working capital of the company and the

group wiil be adequate for ordinary business

pulposes and

The share capital and reserves are adequate for

the ordinary business purposes of the company

and the group

The effect of the special resolution and the reason

therefor is to extend the general authority given to

the directors in terms of the Act and the Listings

Requirements of the JSE for the acquisition by the

company or one of its wholly-owned subsidiaries of

its own securities which authority shall be used at

the directors discretion during the course of the

period so authorised

In terms of the Listings Requirements of the JSE

the following disclosures are required with reference

to the general authority to repurchase the companys

shares set out in the special resolution above some

of which are set out elsewhere in the annual report

of which this notice forms part this annual report

Directors and management refer page 11

Major shareholders of the company refer page

Directors interests in the companys securities

refer page

Share capital refer page 36

Litigation statement

Other than disclosed or accounted for in this annual

report the directors of the company whose names

are given on page 11 of this annual report are not

aware of any legal or arbitration proceedings

pending or threatened against the group which may

have or have had in the 12 months preceding the

date of this notice material effect on the groups

financial position

Directors responsibility statement

The directors whose names are given on page 11

of this annual report collectively and individually



accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the

information pertaining to the above speoial resolu

tion and certify that to the beet of their knowledge

and belief there are no facts that have been omitted

which would make any statement false or mislead

ing and that all reasonable enquiries to ascertain

such facts have been made and that the above special

resolution contains all information required

Material change

Other than the facts and developments reported on

in this annual report there have been no material

changes in the affairs financial or trading position

of the group since the signature date of this annual

report and the posting date hereof

Proxies

All registered shareholders of the company will be

entitled to attend and vote in person or by proxy at

the general meeting form of proxy is attached for

completion by certificated shareholders and demate

rialised shareholders with own name registration

who are unable to attend in person Forms of proxy

must be completed and received by the company

secretary by not later than 0930 on August 2010

Certificated shareholders and dematerialised

shareholders with own name registration who

complete and lodge forms of proxy will nevertheless

be entitled to attend and vote in person at the gener

al meeting should they subsequently decide to do so

Dematerialised shareholders other than own name

registration must inform their CSDP or broker of

their intention to attend the general meeting and

obtain the necessary authorisation from the CSDP or

broker to attend the general meeting or provide

their CSDP or broker with their voting instructions

should they not be able to attend the general meet

ing in person This must be done in terms of the

agreement entered into between the shareholder and

the CSDP or broker concerned

By order of the board

Pienaar

Secretary

21 May 2010

36 Steflenberg Road

Parow Industria

7493
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Shareholdersinformation

Enquiries

Enquiries relating to shareholdings in the company

such as the loss of share certificates dividend pay

ments or to notify change of address and/or bank

account details please write to the registrars

Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd

Box 61051 Marshafltown 2107 If you have

received more than one copy of this annual report

there may be more than one account in your name

on the companys register of members If you would

like to amalgamate your holdings write to the regis

trars detailing the accounts concerned and instruc

tions on how they should be amalgamated

Additional copies of annual financial

statements

Additional copies of the report are obtainable from

South Africa The company Secretary Tradehold

Ltd 36 Stellenberg Road Parow Industria 7493

telephone number 27 21 929 4800

United States of America The Bank of New York

101 Barclay Street 22nd Floor West New York

NY 10286 telephone number 212 815 2207

United Kingdom The company Secretary

MoorgarthHoldings Ltd 64 Wellington Street

Leeds LS1 2EE telephone number 44 870 850 8001

Europe Tradehold Ltd 58 Rue Charles Martel

L-2134 Luxembourg telephone number

352 268 644 04

AtR programme for American investors

Ordinary shares in Tradehold Ltd are traded in the

United States of America in the form of American

Depository Shares ADSs and evidenced by

American Depository Receipts ADRs Each ADS

represents ten ordinary shares The US sponsored

depository bank for the company is The Bank of New

York 101 Barclay Street 22nd Floor West New

York NY 10286

Share transactions totally electronic

STEATE
In July 2001 the company has transferred its share

capital to the electronic settlement and custody

system STRATE designed to achieve contractual

rolling and irrevocable settlement Shareholders who

have not lodged their share certificates with

Central Securities Depositary Participant CSDP or

qualifying broker of their choice are encouraged to

do so Currently all trade in the companys shares

take place electronically resulting in shareholders

not being able to sell their Tradehold shares unless

they exist in electronic form in the STRATE environ

ment Any questions with regard to the transfer to

STRATE may be directed to the company secretary at

telephone number 27 21 929 4800 or the registrars

Computershare at telephone number 27 11 370 5000

Dividends

No dividend was declared in respect of this reporting

period

Payment of dividend directly into

shareholders bank accounts

Shareholders who do not currently have their dividend

paid directly into bank account and who wish to do

so should complete mandate instruction obtainable

from the companys registrars at the above address

Secretarial certification

In accordance with section 2680d of the Companies Act of South Africa the Act it is hereby certified that the

company has lodged with the Registrar of Compaines all such returns as are required of public company in terms of

the Act and that such returns are true correct and up to date

Pienaar

Secretary

21 May 2010
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Directorate and administration

Directorate Administration

Wiese 68 Company secretary

LL Corn HC Pienaar

Chairrnan P0 Box 6100

Parow East 7501

Gnodde 45t
Corn Sponsor

Barnard Jacobs Mellet Corporate Finance Pty Ltd

Moore 60
Corn Registrars

Financial director Cornputershare Investor Services Pty Ltd

P0 Box 61051

Stassen 59 Marshalltown 2107

Corn Telephone 27 11 370 5000

Facsimile 27 11 370 5487

Troskie 39
Juris Legurn LL Registered office/number

Tradehold Limited

Executive Registration nurnber 1970/009054/06

Non-executive and member of audit committee Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa

Alternate 36 Stellenberg Road

Parow Industria 7493

P0 Box 6100

Parow East 7501

Telephone 27 21 929 4800

Facsirnile 27 21 933 5075

Business address

58 Rue Charles Martel L-2134 Luxernbourg

Telephone 352 268 644 04

Facsimil 352 268 644 05

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc
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Approval of annual financial statements

The annual financial statements were approved by the board of directors and are signed on its behalf by

Stassen Moore

Director Director

21 May 2010
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Report of the audit committee

The audit committee has pleasure in submitting this

report as required by sections 269A and 270A of the

Companies Act the Act

Functions of the audit committee

The audit committee has adopted formal terms of

reference delegated to it by the board of directors as

its audit committee charter The audit committee has

discharged the functions in terms of its charter and

ascribed to it in terms of the Act as follows

1.1 Reviewed the interim and prehminary results

and the year-end annual financial statements

culminating in recommendation to the board

to adopt it In the course of its review the

committee

takes appropriate steps to ensure that the

annual financial statements are prepared in

accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards IFRS and in the manner

required by the Companies Act of South Africa

considers and when appropriate makes

recommendations on internal financial controls

deals with concerns or complaints relating to

the following

accounting policies

the auditing or content of annual financial

statements and

internal financial controls

1.2 Reviewed the external audit reports on the

annual financial statements

1.3 Reviewed the risk management reports and

where relevant recommendations being made to

the board

1.4 Evaluated the effectiveness of risk management

controls and the governance processes

1.5 Verified the independence of the external

auditors nominated PricewaterhouseCoopers

Inc as the auditors for 2010 and noted the

appointment of Mr MC Hamman as the

designated auditor

1.6 Approved the audit fees and engagement terms

of the external auditors

1.7 Determined the nature and extent of allowable

non-audit services and approved the contract

terms for the provision of non-audit services by

the external auditors

Members of the audit committee

and attendance at meetings
The audit committee consists of the two non-

executive directors and meets at least two times

per annum as per the audit committee charter

The audit committee met twice during the year

Both committee members attended the meetings

All members act independently as described in

section 269A of the Companies Act

Attendance

The external auditors in their capacity as auditors

to the company attended and reported to all

meetings of the audit committee The financial

director and relevant senior managers attended

meetings on invitation

Confidential meetings
The audit committee charter provides for confidential

meetings between the committee members and the

external auditors

Independence of external auditors

During the year under review the audit committee

reviewed report/representation by the external

auditors and after conducting its own review

confirmed the independence of the auditors

Expertise and experience of financial

director

As required by JSE Listings Requirement 3.84h
the audit committee has satisfied itself that the

financial director has appropriate expertise and

experience

Stassen

Chairman

21 May 2010
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Auditors report

Independent auditors report to

the members of Tradehold Limited

We have audited the group annua1 financial

statements and annual financial statements of

Tradehold Limited which comprise the consolidated

and separate statements of financial position as at

28 February 2010 and the consolidated and separate

statements of comprehensive income changes in

equity and cash flows for the year then ended and

summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory notes and the directors report as

set out on pages 15 to 51

Directors responsibility for the

financial statements

The companys directors are responsible for the

preparation and fair presentation of these financial

statements in accordance with International

Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner

required by the Companies Act of South Africa This

responsibility includes designing implementing and

maintaining internal control relevant to the prepara

tion and fair presentation of financial statements

that are free from material misstatement whether

due to fraud or error selecting and applying appro

priate accounting policies and making accounting

estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances

Auditors responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

financial statements based on our audit We conduct

ed our audit in accordance with International

Standards on Auditing Those standards require that

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

whether the financial statements are free from mate

rial misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to

obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclo

sures in the financial statements The procedures
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selected depend on the auditors judgement includ

ing the assessment of the risks of material misstate

ment of the financial statements whether due to

fraud or error In making those risk assessments

the auditor considers internal control relevant to the

entitys preparation and fair presentation of the

financial statements in order to design audit proce

dures that are appropriate in the circumstances but

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the entitys internal control An audit

also includes evaluating the appropriateness of

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates made by management as weli

as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

basis for our audit opinion

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements present

fairly in ali material respects the consolidated and

separate financial position of Tradehold Limited as at

28 February 2010 and its consolidated and separate

financial performance and its consolidated and

separate cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with International Financial Reporting

and in the manner required by the Companies Act

of South Africa

WidnuderhweCcrs1c

Pricewaterhousecoopers Inc

Director Hamman

Registered Auditor

Cape Thwn

21 May 2010



Directors report
Tradehold Limited and its subsidiaries

Share capital

Fuil details of the companys authorised and issued

share capital are set out in the notes to the annual

financial statements

The share trust acquired 788 321 ordinary shares

during the year from participants

Business of the group
Tradehold Limited is an investment holding company
with investments in subsidiaries and at year-end the

company held the following investments

Subsidiaries

Moorgarth Properties Luxembourg Sari

Moorgarth Properties which owns portfolio of

properties situated in the United Kingdom

Clumber Park Hotel LLP

On 13 July 2009 the group increased its sharehold

ing in Clumber Park Hotel LLP CPH to 100%

2009 35% for no consideration The company
owns hotel and spa operations

Tradegro Sari

Tradegro renders certain head office and treasury

services in the group
Tradehold Limiteds interest in its subsidiaries as

well as their individual activities are set out in the

annual financial statements

Property plant and equipment
With the acquisition of the controlling stake in CPH
the groups classification of its investment property

previously leased to CPH changed to owner-occupied

property The group therefore transferred an amount

of million from investment property to owner-

occupied property

Investment properties

Changes in properties during the year and details of

property valuations at 28 February 2010 are shown

in note to the annual financial statements

Borrowings
Interest-bearing borrowings comprise long-term bor

rowings and bank borrowings During the year bor

rowings marginally increased due to additional

banking loans entered into to fund property acquisi

tions The increase in borrowings was offset by the

repayment of certain banking loans

Group results

Earnings

After taking into account the interest of minorities

the group reports basic earnings per share of

07 pence 2009 loss of 56 pence
The annual financial statements on pages 15

to 52 set out fully the financial position results of

operations and cash flows of the group for the

financial year ended 28 February 2010

The attributable interest of Tradehold Limited in

the taxed profits and losses of its subsidiaries for the

year ended 28 February 2010 was as follows

2010 2009

33 million

06 million

Dividends

No dividend was declared in respect of this financial

year 2009 nil

Events after the reporting period

No material events have occurred between the

statement of financial position date and the date of

these results that would have material effect on the

annual financial statements of the group

Going concern
The directors consider that the group has adequate

resources to continue operating for the foreseeable

future and that it is appropriate to adopt the going

concern basis in preparing the group financial

statements The directors have satisfied themselves

that the group is in sound financial position and

that it has access to sufficient borrowing facilities

to meet its foreseeable cash requirements

Directorate

The names of the directors are listed elsewhere in

the annual report There were no changes during

the accounting period

In terms of the articles of association of the

company Mr Moore retires as director of the

company at the annual general meeting but being

eligible offers himself for re-election

At 28 February 2010 the directors of Tradehold

Limited held direct interest of 04% 2009 04%
and an indirect non-beneficial interest of 617%
2009 611% of the issued ordinary share capital

of the company Indirect holdings through listed

companies have not been included No material

change in the shareholding of directors has occurred

between the end of the financial period and the date

of this report

Holding company
The company has no holding company An analysis

of the main shareholders of the company appears on

page of this report

Secretary
The name and address of the secretary appear on

page 11 of this report

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc will continue in office

in accordance with Section 2702 of the Companies

Act in South Africa

Thtalprofits

Thtal losses 163 million
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TRADEHOLD

Statement of financial position
Tradehold Limited and its subsidiaries at 28 February

COMPANY GROUP

2009 2010 2010 2009

ROOO R000 Notes OOO OOO

ASSETS
386 443 384 815 Non-current assets __52 221_-- 48 027

Property plant and equipment 900 47

Investment properties 45 167 46 445

386 443 384 815 Interest in subsidiaries

Interest in associated companies

Financial assets 154 1535

14445 13504 20652 22851

400 888 398 319 Total assets 72 873 70 878

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

393 003 389 756 Ordinary shareholders equity 29 095 26 750

347 347 Share capital 28 28

1019498 1019498 Sharepremium 84776 84776

Treasury shares 26
626 84 630 089 Reserves 10 55 883 58 054

Minority interest 341 361

393 003 389 756 Total equity 29 436 27 111

144 144 Non-current liabilities 26 545 31 452

144 144 Preference share capital 11 12 12
Long-term borrowings 12 533 31 440

741 419 Current liabilities 16 892 12 315

089 Trade and other payables 13 213 127

Thxation payable 364

652 056 Loans from subsidiaries

Short-term borrowings 14 L_14 678 824

885 563 Total liabilities 43 437 43 767

400 888 398 319 Total equity and liabilities 72 873 70 878
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Current assets

156 156

14288 13348

Financial assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Loans to subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

7679

26

2026

10589

332

222

381

16 248



Statement of comprehensive income
adeho1d Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 28 February

2010

OOO

783

359

046

199

230
234
077

448

908

502

13

841

418

262

997

354

351

351

351

351

371

20
________

351

371

20
_________

351

07

0.7

COMPANY GROUP

Notes

2009

ROOO

816

183

999

299 692

307 691

2009

OOO

Continuing operations

Revenue 15

Income on investments

Other operating income

Net gainlloss from fair value adjustment

on investment property

Employee benefit expenses

Lease expenses

Depreciation and amortisation

Other operating costs

425

738

299

Trading profit/loss

Fair value gains/1osses on financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss

Legal and professional expenditure

Impairment of interest in subsidiary

Impairment of loans

Loss on disposal of investments

307 691

307 691

307 691

Operating profitlloss 16

Finance income 17

Finance cost 17

Profit/loss before taxation

Taxation 18

Profit/loss after taxation

Loss of associated companies

460

652
148
25

221

044

164

600

472
236

15 516
088

603

17 031
111

17 142

247

17 389

382

19 771307 691

319

307 372

Profit/loss from continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations 19

Profit/loss for the year

Other comprehensive income/loss net of tax

Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive income/loss for the year

10
19 781

19 494

277

19 771

Profit/loss attributable to

Owners of the parent

Minority interest

Total comprehensive income/loss attributable to

Owners of the parent

Minority interest

Total comprehensive income/loss for the year

Earnings/loss per share pence
basic and diluted

Earnings/loss per share from continuing

operations pence
basic and diluted

The notes on pages 31 to 50 are an integral part of these

consolidated annual financial statements

19 504

277

19 781

20

20

56

49
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TRADEHOLD

Statement of cash flows

Tradehold Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 28 February

COMPANY
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The notes on pages 31 to 50 are an integral part of

these consolidated annual financial statements

GROUP

2009

ROOO

2010

ROOO Notes

2010

OOO
2009

OOO

Cash flows from operating activities

307 891 544 Operating profit/loss 841 15 516
300 011 297 Non-cash items 21.1 741 16 499

246 726 Decrease/increase in working capital 21.2 101 748

926 973 Cash generated fromlused in operations 201 765
Interest received 325 088

Interest paid 262 603
Taxation paid 21.3 57

926 973 Net cash nsed in operating activities 745 337

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property plant and equipment 430 42
Acquisition of investment properties 459 384
Proceeds on disposal of investment properties 453 225

Proceeds on disposal of property plant and equipment 23

Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 100 10 109
Proceeds on disposal of shares in associated company 295

Decrease in loans to staff and directors 326

909 568 Loan repayments received from subsidiary undertakings

Other investment activities 325 56
909 568 Net cash used in/from investing activities 861 16 722

Cash flows from financing activities

404 Proceeds from borrowings 664 10 177

250 Repayment of borrowings 717 540

250 404 Net cash nsed in/from financing activities 53 637

267 Net decrease in cash and cash eqnivalents 659 422
268 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 16 248 25 670

Cash and cash equivaients at end of the year 10 589 16 248



Statement of changes in equity
Tradehold Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 28 February

The notes on pages 31 to 50 are an integral part of these consolidated annual financial statements

19

ANNUAL
REPORT

2010

Foreign Attributable

Share currency Other to equity

capital trans- non-dis- holders

and lation tributable Retained Of the

preniiuni reserve reserves income parent

Minority

interest Total

Group OOO
Balance at 29 February 2008 84 804 105 844 47 499 46 254 638 46 892

Total comprehensive loss 10 19 494 19 504 277 19 781

Balanceat2sFebruary2009 84804 8095 844 66993 26750 361 27111

Purchase of treasury shares 26 26 26
Total comprehensive income 371 371 20 351

Balance at 28 February 2010 84 778 095 844 64 622 29 095 341 29 436

Company ROOO

Balance at 29 February 2008 019 845 142 236 318 564 700 375 700 375

Total comprehensive loss 319 307 691 307 372 307 372

Balance at 28 February 2009 019 845 823 236 626 255 393 003 393 003

Total comprehensive loss 297 544 247 247

Balance at 28 February 2010 019 845 474 236 630 799 389 756 389 756



TRADEHOLD

Accounting policies

Fradehold Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 28 February

The principal accounting policies applied in the

preparation of these consolidated annual financial

statements are set out below These policies have

been consistently applied to all years presented

unless otherwise stated

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The consolldated annual financial statements of the

Tradehold group have been prepared in accordance

with International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS IFRIC Interpretations and in the manner

required by the Companies Act of South Africa

Statement of comprehensive income

and statement of cash flows

The group presents its statement of comprehensive

income by nature of expense

The group reports cash flows from operating

activities using the indirect method

The acquisitions of investment properties are

disclosed as cash flows from investing activities

because this most appropriately reflects the groups

business activities

Cash flows from investing and financing

activities are determined using the direct method

Preparation of the consolidated annual

financial statements

The consolidated annual financial statements have

been prepared under the historical cost convention

as modified by the revaluation of investment proper

ties and financial instruments at fair value through

profit and loss

The preparation of consolidated annual financial

statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use

of certain critical accounting estimates It also

requires management to exercise its judgement in

the process of applying the groups accounting poli

cies The areas involving higher degree of judge

ment or complexity or areas where assumptions and

estimates are significant to the consolidated annual

financial statements are disclosed in note 24

Use of adjusted measures

The measure listed below is presented as manage

ment believes it to be relevant to the understanding

of the groups financial performance This measure

is used for internal performance analysis and pro

vides additional useful information on underlying

trends to equity holders This measure is not
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defined term under IFRS and may therefore not be

comparable with similarly titled measures reported

by other entities It is not intended to be substitute

for or superior to measures as required by IFRS

Trading profit on the face of the statement of

comprehensive income being the groups operating

result excluding falr value gains or losses on finan

cial assets at fair value through profit or loss legal

and professional expenditure impairment of loans

and loss or profits on disposal of investments

Changes in accounting

policy and disclosures

The group has adopted the following new and amen
ded IFRSs and interpretations as of March 2009

Standards amendments and

interpretations effective in 2010 and

relevant to the groups operations

IFRS Financial instruments Disclosures

amendment effective January 2009 The amend

ment requires enhanced disclosures about falr value

measurement and liquidity risk In particular the

amendment requires disclosure of fair value

measurements by level of fair value measurement

hierarchy The adoption of the amendment results in

additional disclosures but does not have an impact

on profit or earnings per share

IFRS replaces lAS 14 segment reporting and

is effective for annual periods beginning on or after

January 2009 The new standard requires

management approach under which segment

information is presented on similar basis to that

used for internal reporting purposes The effects of

adoption by the group are disclosed in note 31 to the

annual financial statements

lAS revised Presentation of financial state

ments effective January 2009 The revised stand

ard prohibits the presentation of items of income and

expenses that is non-owner changes in equity in

the statement of changes in equity requiring non-

owner changes in equity to be presented separately

from owner changes in equity in statement of com

prehensive income As result the group presents in

the consolidated statement of changes in equity all

owner changes in equity whereas all non-owner

changes in equity are presented in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income The adoption of

this revised standard impacts only presentation

aspects therefore it has no impact on profit or

earnings per share

lAS 40 Investment property amendment and



consequential amendment to lAS 16 Property plant

and equipment The amendments are part of the

IASBs annual improvements project published in

May 2008 and are effective from January 2009

Property that is under construction or development

for future use as investment property is brought

within the scope of LAS 40 Where the fair value

model is applied such property is measured at fair

value However where fair value of investment prop

erty under construction is not reliably determinable

the property is measured at cost until the earlier of

the date construction is completed and the date at

winch fair value becomes reliably measurable The

group does not have any property under construction

Standards amendments and

interpretations to existing standards

effective in 2010 but not relevant to

the groups operations

Improvements to IFRSs 2008

Borrowing costs Revised

Amendments to 1FRS First-Time Adoption of

International Financial Heporting Standards and

LAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial

Statements Cost of an Investment in Subsidiary

Jointly Controlied Entity or Associate

Amendment to LAS 32 Financial Instruments

Presentation and LAS Presentation of Financial

Statements Puttable Financial Instruments and

Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendment to 1FRS 2- Vesting conditions and

canceliations

Amendments to 1FRIC Reassessment of

Embedded Derivatives and LAS 39 Financial

Instruments Recognition and Measurement

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real

Estate

IFRIC 16 Hedges of Net Investment in Foreign

Operation

AC 503 Accounting for Black Economic

Empowerment BEE Transactions Revised

Standards amendments and inter

pretations to existing standards that

are not yet effective and have not been

early adopted by the group
The foliowing standards and amendments to existing

standards have been published and are mandatory

for the groups accounting periods beginning on or

after March 2010 or later periods but the group

has not early adopted them

Improvements to IFRSs 2008 effective from

annual periods beginning on or after July 2009

Improvements to IFRSs 2009 effective from

annual periods beginning on or after July 2009

and January 2010

Improvements to IFRSs 2010 Not yet approved

by the APB effective from annual periods begin

ning on or after July 2010 and January 2011

Amendments to IFRS First-Time Adoption of

International Financial Reporting Standards

effective from annual periods beginning on or

after January 2010

Amendments to IFRS First-Time Adoption of

International Financial Reporting Standards

effective from annual periods beginning on or

after July 2010

IFRS Amendment Group cash-settled share-

based payment transactions effective from annu

al periods beginning on or after January 2010

IFRS Revised Business combinations

effective from annual periods beginning on

or after July 2009

FRS Financial instruments effective from annual

periods beginning on or after January 2013

Amended lAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

effective from annual periods beginning on or

after January 2011

LAS 27 Revised Consolidated and separate

financial statements effective from annual periods

beginning on or after July 2009

Amendment to LAS 32 Classification of Rights

Issues effective from annual periods beginning

on or after February 2010

Amendments to LAS 39 Financial Instruments

Recognition and Measurement Exposures

Qualifying for Hedge Accounting effective from

annual periods beginning on or after July 2009

Amendment to IFRIC 14 Prepayments of

Ivlinimum funding requirement effective from

annual periods beginning on or after January

2011

IFRIC 17 Distribution of non-cash assets to own

ers effective from annual periods beginning on

or after July 2009

IFRIC 18 Transfers of assets from customers

effective from annual periods beginning on or

after July 2009

lYRIC 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities with

equity instruments effective from annual periods

beginning on or after July 2010

AC 504 LAS 19 AC116 The limit on defined

benefit asset Minimum fundmg requirements
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TRADEHOLD

Accounting policies continued
Tradehold Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 28 February

and their interaction in the South African pension

fund environment effective from annual periods

beginning on or after April 2009

Management is assessing the impact of these stand

ards amendments and interpretations on the groups

operations

Consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities including special pur

pose entities over which the group has the power to

govern the financial and operating policies generally

accompanying shareholding of more than one half

of the voting rights The existence and effect of

potential voting rights that are currently exercisable

or convertible are considered when assessing wheth

er the group controls another entity

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date

on which control is transferred to the group They

are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases

The purchase method of accounting is used to

account for the acquisition of subsidiaries The cost

of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the

assets given equity instruments issued and liabilities

incurred or assumed at the date of exchange plus

costs directly attributable to the acquisition

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contin

gent liabilities assumed in business combination are

measured initially at their fair values at the acquisi

tion date irrespective of the extent of any minority

interest The excess of the cost of acquisition over the

fair value of the groups share of the identifiable net

assets acquired is recorded as goodwill If the cost of

acquisition is less than the fair value of the groups

share of the net assets acquired the difference is rec

ognised directly in the profit or loss for the year

Consolidated annual financial statements are pre

pared using uniform accounting policies

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been

changed where necessary to ensure consistency with

the policies adopted by the group

Intercompany transactions balances and unreal

ised gains on transactions between group companies

are eliminated Unrealised losses are also eliminated

unless the transaction provides evidence of an

impairment of the asset transferred

Transaction with minorities

The group applies policy of treating transactions

with minority interests as transactions with parties
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external to the group Disposals to minority interests

result in gains and losses for the group and are

recorded in the profit or loss Purchases from minor

ity interests result in goodwill being the difference

between any consideration paid and the relevant

share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of

the subsidiary

Associates

Associates are ali entities over which the group has

significant influence but not control generaliy

accompanying shareholding of between 20% and

50% of the voting rights Investments in associates

are accounted for using the ecpiiity method of

accounting and are initially recognised at cost The

groups investment in associates includes goodwill

identified on acquisition net of any accumulated

impairment loss See note 10 for the impairment of

non-financial assets including goodwill

The groups share of its associates post-acquisi

tion profits or losses is recognised in the profit or

loss and its share of post-acquisition movements in

reserves is recognised in reserves The cumulative

post-acquisition movements in reserves are recog

nised in other comprehensive income The cumula

tive post-acquisition movements are adjusted against

the carrying amount of the investment When the

groups share of losses in an associate equals or

exceeds its interest in the associate including any

other unsecured receivables the group does not rec

ognise further losses unless it has incurred obliga

tions or made payments on behalf of the associate

lJnrealised gains on transactions between the

group and its associates are eliminated to the extent

of the groups interest in the associates Unrealised

losses are also eliminated unless the transaction pro

vides evidence of an impairment of the asset trans

ferred Accounting policies of associates have been

changed where necessary to ensure consistency with

the policies adopted by the group Dilution gains and

losses arising in investments in associates are recog

nised in the profit or loss

Investment in subsidiaries and

associates

In the companys annual financial statements

investments in subsidiaries and associates are

carried at cost less impairment

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in manner con

sistent with the internal reporting provided to the



chief operating decision maker The chief operating

decision maker is the person or group that allocates

resources to and assesses the performance of the

operating segments of an entity The group has

determined that its chief operating decision maker is

the board of directors of the group

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated annual financial

statements of each of the groups entities are measured

using the currency of the prhnary economic environ

ment in which the entity operates the functional

currency The consolidated annual financial state

ments are presented in Pound Sterling which is the

companys functional currency and the groups

presentation currency The companys presentation

currency is South African Rand

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into

the functional currency using the exchange rates

prevalling at the dates of the transactions or valua

tion where items are re-measured Foreign exchange

gains and losses resulting from the settlement of

such transactions and from the translation at year-

end exchange rates of monetary assets and llabllities

denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in

the profit or loss for the year

Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group

entities none of which has the currency of hyper

inflationary eoonomy that have functional curren

cy different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows

assets and liabilities for each statement of financial

position presented are translated at the closing rate

at the date of that statement of financial position

iiincome and expenses for each profit or loss are

translated at average exchange rates unless this

average is not reasonable approximation of the

cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the

transaction dates in which case income and

expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of

the transactions

iii all resulting exchange differences are recognised

as separate component of equity in other com

prehensive income

On consolidation exchange differences arising

from the translation of the net investment in foreign

entities and of borrowings and other currency

instruments designated as hedges of such invest

ments are taken to shareholders equity When

foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold

such exchange differences are recognised in profit

and loss as part of the gain or loss on sale

Goodwifi and fair value adjustments arising on

the acquisition of foreign entity are treated as

assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and

translated at the closing rate

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or

for capital appreciation or both and that is not

occupied by the companies in the consolidated group

is classified as investment property As from March

2009 investment property also includes property

that is being constructed or developed for future use

as investment property

Investment property is measured initially at its

cost including related transaction costs and borrow

ing costs After initial recognition investment

property is carried at fair value Fair value is based

on active market prices adjusted if necessary for

any difference in the nature location or condition of

the specific asset If this information is not available

the group uses alternative valuation methods such

as external valuers or internal valuations based on

rental income from current leases and assumptions

about rental income from future leases in the light of

current market conditions recent prices on less

active markets or discounted cash flow projections

Valuations are performed as of the financial position

date by professional valuers who hold recognised

and relevant professional qualifications and have

recent experience in the location and category of the

investment property being valued These valuations

form the basis for the carrying amounts in the con

solidated annual financial statements Investment

property that is being redeveloped for continuing

use as investment property or for which the market

has become less active continues to be measured at

fair value Falr value measurement on property

under construction is only applied if the fair value is

considered to be reliably measurable

The fair value of investment property reflects

among other things rental income from current

leases and assumptions about rental income from

future leases in the light of current market condi

tions The fair value also reflects on similar basis

any cash outflows that could be expected in respect

23

ANNUAL
REPORT

2010



TRADEI-IOLD

Accounting policies continued
Tradehold Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 28 February

of the property Some of those outflows are recog

nised as liability inoluding finance lease liabilities

in respect of leasehold land classified as investment

property others including contingent rent pay

ments are not recognised in the consolidated annual

financial statements

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the

assets carrying amount only when it is probable that

future economic benefits associated with the expendi

ture will flow to the group and the cost of the item

can be measured reliably All other repairs and main

tenance costs are expensed when incurred When

part of an investment property is replaced the carry

ing amount of the replaced part is derecognised

If valuation obtained for property held under

lease is net of all payments expected to be made

any related lease liability recognised separately in

the statement of financial position is added back to

arrive at the carrying value of the investment prop

erty for accounting purposes

The fair value of investment property does not

reflect future capital expenditure that will improve

or enhance the property and does not reflect the

related future benefits from this future expenditure

other than those rational market participant would

take into account when determining the value of the

property

Changes in fair values are recognised in the prof

it or loss Investment properties are derecognised

either when they have been disposed of or when the

investment property is permanently withdrawn from

use and no future economic benefit is expected from

its disposal

Where the group disposes of property at fair

value in an arms length transaction the carrying

value immediately prior to the sale is adjusted to the

transaction price and the adjustment is recorded in

the profit or loss within net gain from fair value

adjustment on investment property

If an investment property becomes owner-occu

pied it is reclassified as property plant and equip

ment Its fair value at the date of reclassification

becomes its cost for subsequent accounting purposes

If an item of owner-occupied property becomes an

investment property because its use has changed

any difference resulting between the carrying

amount and the fair value of this item at the date of

transfer is treated in the same way as revaluation

under property plant and equipment Any resulting

increase in the carrying amount of the property is

recognised in the profit or loss to the extent that it

reverses previous impairment loss with any
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remaining increase recognised in other comprehen

sive income and increases directly to revaluation sur

plus within equity Any resulting decrease in the

carrying amount of the property is initially charged

in other comprehensive income against any previ

ously recognised revaluation surplus with any

remaining decrease charged to profit or loss

Where an investment property undergoes

change in use evidenced by commencement of devel

opment with view to sale the property is trans

ferred to inventories propertys deemed cost for

subsequent accounting as inventories is its fair value

at the date of change in use

Property plant and equipment
All property plant and equipment is stated at histori

cal cost less depreciation Historical cost includes

expenditure that is directly attributable to the acqui

sition of the items

Cost of an item of property plant and equipment

includes its purchase price and any direct attributa

ble costs Cost includes the cost of replacing part of

an existing property plant and equipment at the

time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria

are met and excludes the costs of day-to-day servic

ing of an item of property plant and equipment

Borrowing costs incurred for the purpose of

acquiring constructing or producing qualifying

property plant and equipment are capitalised as part

of its cost qualifying property plant and equip

ment is an asset that necessarily takes substantial

period of time to get ready for its intended use

Borrowing costs are capitalised while acquisition

construction or production is actively underway and

ceases once the asset is substantially complete or sus

pended if the development of the asset is suspended

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carry

ing amount or recognised as separate asset as

appropriate only when it is probable that future eco

nomic benefits associated with the item will flow to

the group and the cost of the item can be measured

reliably The carrying amount of those parts that are

replaced is derecognised All other repairs and main

tenance are charged to the profit or loss during the

financial period in which they are incurred

Depreciation based on component approach is

calculated using the straight-line method to allocate

the cost over the assets estlinated useful lives as

follows

Land Nil

Buildings 50 years

Machinery years



Equipment 10 years

Vehicles years

Improvements to leasehold property over the

shorter of the useful life of the asset and the

lease term

The assets residual values and useful lives are

reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at least at each

financial year-end

An assets carrying amount is written down

immediately to its recoverable amount if its carrying

amount is greater than its estimated recoverable

amount

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by

comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are

included in the profit or loss

Leases

group company is the lessee

Operating lease

Leases in which significant portion of the risks

and rewards of ownership are retained by another

party the lessor are classified as operating leases

Payments including prepayments made under oper

ating leases net of any incentives received from the

lessor are charged to profit or loss on straight-line

basis over the period of the lease Properties leased

out under operating leases are included in invest

ment properties See note for the accounting policy

relating to land held on an operating lease and used

as investment property

group company is the lessor in

an operating lease

Properties leased out under operating leases are

included in investment property in the statement

of financial position note to the annual financial

statements See note 22 for the recognition of rental

income

group company is the lessor

fees paid in connection with arranging

leases and lease incentives

The group makes payments to agents for services in

connection with negotiating lease contracts with the

groups lessees The letting fees are capitalised with

in the carrying amount of the related investment

property and amortised over the lease term Lease

incentives are recognised as reduction of rental

income on straight-line basis over the lease term

Goodwill

Goodwifi represents the excess of the cost of an

acquisition over the fair value of the groups share of

the net identifiable assets of the acquired business at

the date of acquisition Goodwill on acquisition of

associates is included in interest in associated com

panies and is tested for impairment as part of the

over-all balance Goodwifi on acquisition of subsidiar

ies is included in intangibles Goodwill is tested

annually for impairment and carried at cost less

accumulated impairment losses Impairment losses

on goodwffl are not reversed Gains and losses on the

disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of

goodwill relating to the entity sold Goodwffl is allo

cated to cash-generating units for the purpose of

impairment testing The allocation is made to those

cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating

units that are expected to benefit from the business

combination in which the goodwifi arose identified

according to operating segment

10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life for exam

ple goodwill are not subject to amortisation and are

tested annually for impairment Assets that are sub

ject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate

that the carrying amount may not be recoverable

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by

which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recover

able amount The recoverable amount is the higher of

an assets fair value less costs to sell and value in use

For the purposes of assessing impairment assets are

grouped at the lowest levels for which there are sepa

rately identifiable cash flows cash-generating units

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered

impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the

impairment at each reporting date

11 Non-current assets or disposal

groups held-for-sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified

as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is

to be recovered principally through sale transac

tion and sale is considered highiy probable They

are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair

value less costs to sell if their carrying amount is to

be recovered principally through sale transaction

rather than through continuing use
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Accounting policies continued
Tradehold Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 28 February

12 Financial assets

Classification

The group classifies its financial assets in the following

categories at fair value through profit or loss loans

and receivables and available-for-sale The classification

depends on the purpose for which the financial assets

were acquired Management determines the classifi

cation of its financial assets at initial recognition

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at falr value through profit or loss

are financial assets held for trading financial

asset is classified in this category if acquired princi

pally for the purpose of seffing in the short-term

Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading

unless they are designated as hedges Assets in this

category are classified as current assets

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial

assets with fixed or determinable payments that are

not quoted in an active market They are included in

current assets except for maturitiesgreater than

12 months after the end of the reporting period

These are classified as non-current assets The

groups loans and receivables comprise trade and

other receivables and cash and cash equivalents in

the statement of financial position

Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are

recognised on the trade-date the date on which the

group commits to purchase or sell the asset

Investments are initially recognised at falr value

plus transaction costs for all financial assets not

carried at falr value through profit or loss Financial

assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are

initially recognised at fair value and transaction

costs are expensed in the profit or loss Financial

assets are derecognised when the rights to receive

cash flows from the investments have expired or

have been transferred and the group has transferred

substantially all risks and rewards of ownership

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently

carried at fair value Loans and receivables are sub

sequently carried at amortised cost using the effec

tive interest method

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair

value of the financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss category are presented in the profit or
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loss in the period in which they arise Dividend

income from financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss is recognised in the profit or loss as

part of other income when the groups right to

receive payments is established

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the

net amount reported in the statement of financial

position when there is legally enforceable right

to offset the recognised amounts and there is an

intention to settle on net basis or realise the

asset and settle the liability simultaneously

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The group assesses at the end of each reporting

period whether there is objective evidence that

financial asset or group of financial assets is

impaired financial asset or group of financial

assets is impaired and impairment losses are

incurred only if there is objective evidence of impair

ment as result of one or more events that occurred

after the initial recognition of the asset loss

event and that loss event or events has an impact

on the estimated future cash flows of the financial

asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably

estimated

The group first assesses whether objective

evidence of impairment exists

The amount of the loss is measured as the differ

ence between the assets carrying amount and the

present value of estimated future cash flows exclud

ing future credit losses that have not been incurred

discounted at the financial assets original effective

interest rate The carrying amount of the asset is

reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in

the profit or loss If loan has variable interest

rate the discount rate for measuringany impair

ment loss is the current effective interest rate deter

mined under the contract As practical expedient

the group may measure impairment on the basis of

an instruments fair value using an observable mar
ket price

If in subsequent period the amount of the

impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be

related objectively to an event occurring after the

impairment was recognised such as an improvement

in the debtors credit rating the reversal of the pre

viously recognised impairment loss is recognised in

the profit or loss
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TRADEHOLD LIMITED

Registration number 1970/009054/06

Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa

JSE Code TDH ISIN ZAE000026902

Tradehold or the company

Formof proxy

To be completed by certificated shareholders and dematerialised shareholders with own name registration only

For use at the annual general meeting of members to be held at 0930 on Friday August 2010 in the boardroom

at the head office of Pepkor Limited 36 Stellenberg Road Parow Industria 7493

Shareholders who have dematerialised their shares with CSDP or broker other than with own name registration must

arrange with the CSDP or broker concerned to provide them with the necessary authorisation to attend the annual general

meeting or the shareholders concerned must instruct them as to how they wish to vote in this regard This must be done in

terms of the agreement entered into between the shareholder and the CSDP or broker concerned

TJWe full names and surname in block letters

of full address

as member of Tradehold being the registered holder of shares in the company hereby appoint

or

or

THE CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING

as my/our proxy to attend speak and vote on my/our behalf as indicated below at the annual general meeting of

shareholders of Tradehold to be held at 0930 on Friday August 2010 and at any adjournment thereof

Indicate with an in the appropriate block

Ordinary resolutions

Adoption of the annual financial statements

Confirmation of the directors remuneration

Re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc

as auditors

Re-appointment of Mr Moore to the board

Placing the shares under the control of the directors

General authority to directors to issue shares for cash

Special resolution general authority to directors to

repurchase the coinpygares

Signed at this day of 2010

Signature

Capacity and authorisation see note

rN FAvouR OF AGAUJ5T ABsTAiN

Please read the notes on the reverse side of this form of proxy



if

Formof proxy continued

NOTES

member entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting shall be entitled to appoint one or more persons

who need not be members of the company as his proxy to attend and speak to vote or abstain in his place at such

general meeting

If proxy form daly signed is lodged without specific directions as to which way the proxy is to vote the proxy will

be deemed to have been authorised to vote as he thinks fit

If the proxy is signed under power of attorney or on behalf of company such power or authority unless previously

registered with the company must accompany it

Shareholders who have dematerialised their shares with CSDP or stockbroker other than own name registration

must arrange with the CSDP or stockbroker concerned to provide them with the necessary authorisation to attend the

annual general meeting or the shareholders concerned must instruct them as to how they wish to vote in this regard

This must be done in terms of the agreement entered into between the shareholder and the OSDP or stockbroker

concerned

Any alteration to the form of proxy must be signed not initialled

Where there are joint holders of shares and if more than one of such joint holders is present or represented then the

person whose name appears first in the register in respect of such shares or his/her proxy as the case may be shall

alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof

The completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not preclude the signatory from attending the annual general

meeting and speaking and voting in person thereat to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms hereof should such

signatory wish to do so

Proxies must reach the company secretary at his office at 36 Stellenberg Road Parow Industria 7493 Box 6100

Parow East 7501 by no later than 0930 on August 2010 at least 48 hours before commencement of the meeting



13 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers

for merchandise sold or services performed in the

ordinary course of business If collection is expected

in one year or less or in the normal operating cycle

of the business if longer they are classified as

current assets If not they are presented as non-cur

rent assets

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair

value and subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method less provision for

impairment

14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand

deposits held at call with banks other short-term

bigbiy liquid investments with original maturities of

tbree months or less and bank overdrafts Bank

overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current

liabilities on the statement of financial position

15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Mandatorlly

redeemable preference shares are classified as liabili

ties

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue

of new shares or options are shown in equity as

deduction net of tax from the proceeds

Where any group company purchases the compa

nys equity share capital treasury shares the con

sideration paid including any directly attributable

incremental costs net of income taxes is deducted

from equity attributable to the companys equity

holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued

Where such shares are subsequently reissued any

consideration received net of any directly attributa

ble incremental transaction costs and the related

income tax effects is included in equity attributable

to the companys equity holders

16 Trade payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or

services that have been acquired in the ordinary

course of business from suppliers Accounts payable

are classified as current liabilities if payment is due

witbin one year or less or in the normal operating

cycle of the business if longer If not they are pre

sented as non-current liabilities

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair

value and subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method

17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value net

of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subse

quently carried at amortised cost any difference

between the proceeds net of transaction costs and

the redemption value is recognised in the profit or

loss over the period of the borrowings using the

effective interest method

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities

are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the

extent that it is probable that some or all of the facili

ty will be drawn down In this case the fee is

deferred until the draw-down occurs To the extent

there is no evidence that it is probable that some or

all of the facility will be drawn down the fee is capi

talised as pre-payment for liquidity services and

amortised over the period of the faculty to which it

relates

Preference shares which are mandatorily redeem

able on specific date are classified as liabilities

The dividends on these preference shares are recog

nised in the profit or loss as interest expense

18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and

deferred tax Thx is recognised in the profit or loss

except to the extent that it relates to items recognised

in other comprehensive income or directly in equity

In this case the tax is also recognised in other com

prehensive income or directly in equity respectively

The current income tax charge is calculated on

the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively

enacted at the statement of financial position date in

the countries where the companys subsidiaries and

associates operate and generate taxable income

Management periodically evaluates positions taken

in tax returns with respect to situations in which

applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation

It establishes provisions where appropriate on the

basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax

authorities

Deferred income tax is recognised using the lia

bifity method on temporary differences arising

between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and

their carrying amounts in the consolidated annual

financial statements However the deferred income

tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recog

nition of an asset or liability in transaction other

than business combination that at the time of the

transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable

profit or loss Deferred income tax is determined

using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
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TRADEHOLD

Accounting policies continued
Tradehold Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 28 February

substantially enacted by the statement of financial

position date and are expected to apply when the

related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to

the extent that it is probable that future taxable prof

it will be available against which the temporary dif

ferences can be utilised

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary dif

ferences arising on investments in subsidiaries and

associates except where the timing of the reversal of

the temporary difference is controlled by the group

and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are off

set when there is legally enforceable right to offset

current tax assets against current tax liabilities and

when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities

relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either the taxable entity or different

taxable entities where there is an intention to settle

the balances on net basis

South African resident companies are subject to

dual corporate tax system one part of the tax being

levied on taxable income and the other secondary tax

called STC on distributed income company incurs

STC charges on the declaration or deemed declaration

of dividends as defined under tax law to its sharehold

ers 5Th is not withholding tax on shareholders but

tax on companies The STO tax consequence of divi

dends is recognised as taxation charge in the income

statement in the same period that the related dividend

is accrued as liability The STC
liability

is reduced by

dividends received during the dividend cycle Where

dividends declared exceed the dividends received dur

ing cycle 5Th is payable at the current STO rate on

the net amount Where dividends received exceed divi

dends declared within cycle there is no liability to

pay STO The potential tax benefit related to excess divi

dends received is carried forward to the next dividend

cycle as an STC credit Deferred tax assets are recog

nisedon unutilised STO credits to the extent that it is

probable that the group will declare future dividends to

utilise such STO credits

19 Employee benefits

Pensions

The group pays contributions to publicly or privately

administered pension insurance plans on mandato

ry contractual or voluntary basis The group has no

further payment obligations once the contributions
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have been paid The contributions are recognised as

employee benefits expense when they are due

Frepald contributions are recognised as an asset to

the extent that cash refund or reduction in the

future payments is available

Short-term employee benefits and

compensation absences

Wages salaries pald annual leave and sick leave

bonuses and non-monetary benefits such as health

services and childcare services are recognised as

employee benefit expense and accrued when the asso

ciated services are rendered by the employees of the

group

Profit-sharing and bonus payments
The group recognises liability and an expense for

bonuses and profit-sharing based on formula that

takes into consideration the profit attributable to the

companys shareholders after certain adjustments

The group recognises provision where contractual

ly obliged or where there is past practice that has

created constructive obligation

20 Share-based payments
The group operates an equity-settled share-based

compensation plan under which the entity receives

services from employees as consideration for equity

instruments options of the group The falr value of

the employee services received in exchange for the

grant of the options is recognised as an expense

The total amount to be expensed is determined by

reference to the fair value of the options granted

including any market performance conditions

excluding the impact of any service and non-

market performance vesting conditions for

example profitability sales growth targets and

remaining an employee of the entity over

specified time period and

including the impact of any non-vesting conditions

Non-market vesting conditions are included in

assumptions about the number of options that are

expected to vest The total expense is recognised over

the vesting period which is the period over which all

of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied

At the end of each reporting period the entity

revises its estimates of the number of options that

are expected to vest based on the non-marketing

vesting conditions It recognises the impact of the

revision to original estimates if any in the profit or

loss with corresponding adjustment to equity



The cash subscribed for the shares issued when

the options are exercised is credited to share capitai

nominal value and share premium net of any

directly attributable transaction costs

The grant by the company of options over its

equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary

undertakings in the group is treated as capital con

tribution The fair value of employee services

received measured by reference to the grant date

fair value is recognised over the vesting period as

an increase to investment in subsidiary undertak

ings with corresponding credit to equity

The fair value of empioyee share options granted

on or after November 2002 is calculated using the

Black-Scholes or Monte Carlo models The group

elected not to apply IFRS to share awards granted

before November 2002 such that no expense has

been or is being recognised for them in the profit or

ioss Consequently on the vesting of these awards

the cost of the shares is recognised directly in

retained earnings

21 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the

group has present legal or constructive obligation as

result of past events it is probable that an outflow of

resources will be required to settle the obligation and

the amount can be reliably estimated Provisions are

not recognised for future operating leases

Where the group as lessee is contractually

required to restore leased property to an agreed

condition prior to release by lessor provision is

made for such costs as they are identified

provision for onerous contracts is recognised when

the expected benefits to be derived by the group from

contract is lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting

its obligations under the contract onerous contracts

Provisions are measured at the present value of

the expenditures expected to be required to settle the

obligation using pre-tax rate that reflects current

market assessments of the time value of money and

the risks specific to the obligation The increase in

the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

finance cost

22 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the considera

tion received or receivable for the sale of goods and

services in the ordinary course of the groups

activities Revenue is shown net of value-added tax

returns rebates and discounts and after eliminating

sales within the group

The group recognises revenue when the amount

of revenue can be reliably measured it is probable

that future economic benefits will flow to the entity

and when specific criteria have been met for each

of the groups activities as described below

Revenue includes rental income and service

charges and revenue from hotel operations

Rental income

Rental income from operating leases is recognised

on straight-line basis over the lease term When the

group provides incentives to its tenants the cost of

incentives is recognised over the lease term on

straight-line basis as reduction of rental income

Service and management charges are recognised

in the accounting period in which the services are

rendered When the group is acting as an agent the

corrunission rather than gross income is recorded as

revenue

Surrender premiums are recognised as income in

the period they become receivable from the tenant

Revenue from hotel operations

Revenue from hotel operations includes the rental

of rooms and food and beverage sales Revenue is

recognised when rooms are eccupied and food and

beverages are sold

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective

interest method When loan and receivable is

impaired the group reduces the carrying amount to

its recoverable amount being the estimated future

cash flow discounted at the original effective interest

rate of the instrument and continues unwinding the

discount as interest income Interest income on

impaired loan and receivables are recognised using

the original effective interest rate

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to

receive payment is established

23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the companys shareholders

is recognised as liability in the groups consolidat

ed annual financial statements in the period in

which the dividends are declared

24 Critical accounting estimates

assumptions and judgements

Management makes estimates and assumptions
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Accounting policies continued

Tradehold Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 28 February

concerning the future The resulting accounting

estimates wifi by definition seldom equal the related

actual results The estimates assumptions and

management judgements that have significant risk

of causing material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are outlined below

Principal assumptions underlying

managements estimation of fair value

of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices

in an active market for similar leases and other

contracts In the absence of such information the

group determines the amount witbin range of

reasonable fair value estimates In making its

judgement the group considers information from

variety of sources including

Current prices in an active market for properties

of different nature condition or location or sub

ject to different lease or other contracts adjusted

to reflect those differences

Recent prices of similar properties in less active

markets with adjustments to reflect any changes

in economic conditions since the date of the trans

actions that occurred at those prices and

Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable

estimates of future cash flows derived from the

terms of any existing leases and other contracts

and where possible from external evidence such

as current market rents for similar properties in

the same location and condition and using dis

count rates that reflect current market assess

ments of the uncertainty in the amount and tim

ing of the cash flows
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If information on current or recent prices is not

available the fair values of investment properties are

determined using discounted cash flow valuation

techniques The group used assumptions that are

mainly based on market conditions existing at each

balance sheet date

The principal assumptions underlying manage

ments estimation of fair value are those related to

The receipt of contracted rentals expected future

market rentals lease renewals maintenance require

ments and appropriate discount and capitalisation

rates These valuations are regularly compared to

actual market yield data actual transactions by the

group and those reported by the market

The expected future market rentals are

determined with reference to current market rentals

for similar properties in the same location and

condition

Income taxes

The group is subject to income taxes in numerous

jurisdictions Significant estimates are required in

determining the worldwide provision for income

taxes There are many transactions and calculations

for winch the ultimate tax determination is uncer

tain The group recoginses liabilities for anticipated

tax audit issues based on estimates of whether

additional taxes will be due Where the final tax

outcome of these matters is different from the

amounts that were initially recorded such

differences will impact the current tax and

deferred tax provisions



Notes to the annual financial statements

There were no impairment charges in 2010 and 2009

Tradehold Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 28 February

Machinery Improvements

equipment to leasehold

and vehicles property

1.2.4 Owned land and buildings with carrying amount of 560 million 2009 nil serve as security for long-term

borrowings refer 12.2

1.2.5 register containing details is available for inspection at the registered offices of Moorgarth Holdings Ltd
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5OOO

Property plant and equipment

1.1

Owned land

and

buildings Total

1.1.1

1.1.2

1.1.3

1.2

1.2.1

1.2.2

1.2.3

Cost

At 28 February 2009 110 15 125

Additions 430 432
Transferred from investment properties note 018 018
Acquisitions through business combinations note 29 637 637

At 28 February 2010 018 177 17 212

Accumulated depreciation

At 28 February 2009 73 78

Charge for the year 60 169 234

At 28 February 2010 60 242 10 312

Book value at 28 February 2010 958 935 900

Owned land Machinery Improvements
and equipment to leasehold

OOO buildings and vehicles property Total

Cost

At 29 February 2008 129 129
Additions 20 22 42

Disposals and scrappings 39 46
At 28 February 2009 110 15 125

Aggregate depreciation

At 29 February 2008 89 89

Charge for the year 20 25

Disposals and scrappings 36 36
At 28 February 2009 73 78

Book value at 28 February 2009 37 10 47



TRADEHOLD

Notes continued
Tradehold Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 28 February

COMPANY

2009 2010

R000 ROOO

1011032 1008464

610 302 610 302

400 731 398 163

14288 13348

386 443 384 815
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Investment properties
At beginning of year
Additions

Disposals and scrappings

Net gainlloss from fair value adjustments on

investment property

Transfer to property plant and equipment at fair value

Transfer to disposal groups classified as held for sale

At end of the year

Investment properties transferred to the disposal group

classified as held for sale amounts to 03 milJion and relates

to three apartments that are actively being marketed

2.2 register containing details is available for inspection

at the registered offices of Moorgarth Holdings Ltd

Interest in subsidiaries

Consisting of

Shares in Tradegro Holdings Ltd at cost

Amount owing by Tradegro Holdings Ltd

Impairment of loan to subsidiary

2010

000

External valuers King Sturge who hold recognised and

relevant professional qualifications valued property

representing 25% of the portfolio The remainder of the

portfolio was valued by the directors of the various property

companies following discussions with appropriately qualified

employees of the groups bankers and information received

from agents and auctioneers The valuations were based

upon yields of between 650% and 1325%

Investment properties with carrying amount of 795

were vacant at year-end

2.4 Investment properties with carrying amount of

serve as security for long-term borrowings refer 12.2

2.5 Income and expenditure relating to investment properties

Rental income

Direct operating expenditure

Direct operating expenses recognised in profit

or loss include

relating to investment property that was uniet

Less Current account transferred to current assets refer 3.2

This loan is repayable on demand and

interest-free No repayment terms exist in respect

of the remaining balance of the amount owing by
Tradegro Holdings Ltd which is also interest-free

2.1

GROUP

2009

OOO

46 445

459

4331

046

018

332

44 901

384

380

460

45 167 46 445

2.3

890

43 902 44 958

3229 3425

297 293

236 213

3.1

3.2



COMPANY GROUP

In 2009 as result of the loss on investments in lIES AG
and Instore plc inter-company loans made by the com
pany have been impaired to reflect the fact that the extent

of recovery of these loans remains limited Inter-company
loans have been impaired by R2997 million on 28 February
2009 This impairment charge has been recognised in the

companys income statement

Interest in associated companies
Consisting of

Unlisted investment at cost

Amounts owing

Equity adjustments

Reconciliation of carrying value

Carrying value at beginning of the year
Share of iosses continuing operations
Share of losses discontinuing operations
Sale of interest in associate company
Loans impaired

Loans received

2010 2009

OOO 2000

474

475

9312

247
382

204

228
251

During the previous financial year an investment of 204%
in Instore plc was sold reducing the holding in that company
to 159% The holding in instore plc was therefore classified

as financial asset refer 5.2.1 Also included in the previous

year is the investment in Chunber Park Hotel LLP at Enil

In the current year the group acquired controlling interest

refer 29

679

154

5.2 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

5.2.1 36 235 252 Shares in instore plc designated at

fair value through profit or loss

At beginning

Reclassification from investment in associate company
Fair value movement

At end

gain of 204 millionresulted from fair value adjustment
the investment in instore plc to its fair value of pence per
share at the end of February 2010

loss of 13 million resulted from fair value adjustment
the investment in Instore plc to its fair value of pence per
share at the end of February 2009

671

86

757833

449

2726

363 277

1812 1449
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2009 2010
ROOO ff000

3.3

4.1

4.2

5.1

Financial assets

Consisting of

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Loans and receivables at amortised cost
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5.2.2 636 000 Shares in TJBS AG designated at fair value

through profit or loss

At beginning

Acquisition

Fair value movement

At end

gain of 815 million resulted from fair value adjustment

the investment in TJBS AG to its fair value of SFrl481

at the end of February 2010

loss of 859 million resulted from writing down

the investment in TIES AG to its market value of

SFrl 106 per share at the end of February 2009

The above shares have been pledged as security for

short-term borrowings refer 14.2

5.2.3 000 000 Shares in Abbeycrest plc designated at

fair value through profit or loss

At beginning

Acquisition

Fair value movement

At end

5.3 Loans and receivables at amortised cost

Non-current assets

Loans to directors refer 5.4 5.5

Staff and other loans

SA Rand

135%
15/10/2011

4222

10109

545 887

5787 4222

100

100

145 57

29

154 86

SA Rand

135%
15/10/2011

COMPANY GROUP

2009 2010 2010 2009

ROOo ROOO OOO OOO

Loans to directors 28 February 2010 EOOO Moore Wiese Total

Balance at beginning of the year 25 32 57

Interest capitalised 34 44 78

Increase at conversion 10 13 23

Impairment 13
63 82 145

Currency of loan SA Rand SA Rand

Interest rate 90% 90%
Repayment date 15/10/2011 15/10/2011

Loans to directors 28 February 2009 EOOO Moore Wiese Total

Balance at beginning of the year 90 116 206

Interest capitalised 35 45 80

Increase at conversion 13

Impairment 105 137 242

25 32 57

Currency of loan

Interest rate

Repayment date

Loans to directors have been impaired to reflect the fair value of the underlying assets



COMPANY GROUP

2010 2009

2000 OOO

5.6 Analysis of total financial assets

Non-current 154 535

Current 679 222

7833 5757

Inventories

Consumables and hotel stocks 26

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables 187 157

Other receivables 421 605

Interest receivable 854

Restricted cash 930 765

Indirect tax receivables 482

2026 2381

There is no significant conceatratioa of credit risk

with respect to trade receivables as the group has

large number of tenants As of 28 February 2010 aad

28 February 2009 all trade receivables were fully perform

ing Restricted cash relates to money held in an escrow

account by solicitors until the conclusioa of outstanding

legal matters

Cash and cash equivalents
8.1 Consisting of

Cash at bank and on hand 983 248

Short-term bank deposits 606 13 000

10 589 16 248

Cash cash equivalents and bank overdrafts include the

following for the purposes of the statement of cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents 10 589 16 248

Bank overdrafts

10 589 16 248

8.2 Cash deposits in the amount of 200 800

serve as security for long-term borrowings to ensure

continued compliance with certain loan facility financial

covenants refer 12.2

8.3 cash deposit in the amount of 500 000
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156

156

serve as security for short-term borrowings refer 14.2
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1.3 The preference shares are not convertible into shares of any
other class are not entitled to participate in any profits of

the company and no dividends may be declared or paid in

respect of them The holder of these shares is entitled to be

present at any meeting of the company and is entitled on

poll to one vote in respect of every share held

The preference shares are redeemable in relation to the

extent which the shareholder disposes of his interest in

ordinary shares in the company All issued preference

shares are fully redeemable should the shareholders

interest in ordinary shares become less than 10% These

shares are not listed on any stock exchange

1.4 The unissued share capital is under the control of the

directors who may issue it on predetermined terms under

certain circumstances Full particulars are available for

inspection at the registered office of the company

12 Long-term borrowings
12.1 Secured

Repayable quarterly in instalments of 211 063 2009 10 584
until November 2010 and interest-bearing at 61% 2009 61%
Repayable quarterly in instalments of 4412009 100
until December 2010 and interest-bearing at 58% 2009 58%
Repayable quarterly in instahnents of 16 659 2009 15 633
until August 2011 and interest-bearing at 66% 2009 66%
Repayable quarterly in instalments of 17 843 2009 16 861
until August 2011 and interest-bearing at 59% 2009 59%
Repayable quarterly in instalments of 003 2009 976
until October 2010 and interest-bearing at 1% 2009 61%
Repayable quarterly in instalments of 003 2009 550
until October 2010 and interest-bearing at 5.7% 2009 57%
Repayable quarterly in instabnents of 15 587 2009 215 125
until February 2012 and interest-bearing at 65% 2009 65%
Repayable quarterly in instalments of 30 955 2009 29 003
until October 2011 and interest-bearing at 65% 2009 65%
Repayable quarterly in instabnents of 22 643 2009 21 242
until October 2011 and interest-bearing at 64% 2009 64%
Repayable on disposal of property and interest- bearing at the

bank base rate plus 25% 2009 bank base rate plus 25%
Repayable quarterly in instalments of 222 030 2009 20 699
until February 2012 and interest-bearing at 65% 2009 65%
Repayable quarterly from July 2010 in instalments of

52 250 until July 2012 and interest-bearing at 67%
Repayable quarterly in instalments of 19 618 until July

2010 and interest-bearing at month LIBOR plus 30%
Other

Redemptions within 12 months transferred

to short-term loans

12.2 The above loans are secured by

fixed charge over fixed property with carrying

amount of

Cession of cash deposits in the amount of

COMPANY GROUP

2009 2010 2010 2009

ROOO ROOO OOO 000

1130 1176

1477 1514

2486 2549

2469 2536

1599 1636

1593 1627

2944 3004

5724 5840

4119 4204

173 277

4016 4100

5434

2230

6499

35 394 34 962

861 522

26 533 31 440

49 860 44 958

200 800

50 060 46 758
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The estimated fair values of the above financial liabilities

are the discounted amounts of the estimated future

cash flows expected to be paid and approximate their

carrying amounts

The provision for onerous contracts established in

prioryears cover the loss anticipated in connection with

the liabifities arising as result of an indemnity given

by the group to Instore plc as part of the purchase and

sale agreement

14 Short-term borrowings
14.1 Secured

Short-term portion of long-term borrowings refer 12

Repayable on March 2010 and interest-bearing

at 11% 2009 13% refer 14.2

14.2 The above loan is secured by

Listed share investment with carrying amount of

Cash deposit in the amount of

15 Revenue
Rental income

Hotel revenue

The group has entered into various operating lease

agreements as the lessor of property The period of leases

whereby the group leases out its investment property under

operating leases varies from year to 35 years

Future nviilimum lease payments receivable

under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

Not later than one year
Later than year not later than years

Later than years

GROUP

8881 3522

5817 6302

14678 9824

5767 4222

2500 3000

8267 7222

3229 3425

1554

4783 3425

3374 3027

10871 11023

22 155 20 020

36 400 34 070

2009 2010 2010 2009

ROOO ROoo OOO OOO

13 Trade and other payables
Trade payables 513 346

089 363 Other payables and accrued expenses 040 914

Provision for onerous leases 285 475

Balance at beginning of the year 475 785

Unused amounts reversed 92 241
Utflised during the year 98 69

Deferred income 150 168

Thnant deposits 217 213

Social security and other taxes 11

2089 1363 2213 2127



COMPANY GROUP

2010 2009

OOO OOO

Operating profit/loss
Determined after taking into account the

following

Staff costs 199

Salaries wages and service benefits

Retirement benefit contributions

Foreign exchange losses

Auditors remuneration

Audit fees for this year

over/underprovided in the previous year

Fees paid for outside services

Administrative

Secretarial

Administration fees received from subsidiary companies

Bad debts written off

Operating leases buildings

Operating leases machinery

Profit on sale and scrapping of property

plant and equipment

Profit/ioss on disposal of investment properties

Legal and professional expenditure refer 16.1.1
Loss on disposal of investments refer 16.1.2

16.2 Directors remuneration

16.2.1 Non-executive directors

Executive directors

652
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2009 2010

ff000 ff000

689

16
16.1

816

816 689

476 447

429 448

47

5734 7550

5648

86 106

1199 632

113 1004

63 60

64 57

117 390

109 384

1146

145 148

85

12
211 154

502 600

1236

l75

16.1.2 Represents the loss on disposal of 465 ini.lion

Instore plc shares during July 2008 for proceeds
of 23 million

16.1.1 Represent the cost of lltigation and fees payable in

respect of the restructuring of the business of Tradehold Ltd

10

742

752

10

576

586
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2009

ROOO

2010
ROOO

17 Finance income and cost

Finance cost on bank borrowings
Finance cost on long-term borrowings

Total finance cost

Interest income on short-term bank deposits

Interest income on loans to staff

Other finance income

Total finance income

Finance income/cost net

18 Taxation
18.1 Classification

South African normal taxation

Foreign taxation

18.2 Consisting of

Current taxation

Prior year taxation

GROUP

2010 2009

OOO OOO

Manage-
Basic ment

remune- company 2010 2009

ration Fees fees Total Total

OOO 2000 OOO 2000 OOO

16.2.2

16.2.3

16.2.4

Non-executive directors

CStassen 10 10 10

Troskie

10 10 10

Manage-
Basic ment Basic

remune- company 2010 2009

ration Fees fees Total Total

OOO OOO 2000 OOO OOO

Executive directors

Moore 336 336 281

CHWiese 45 361 406 295

336 45 361 742 576

Total

Number options

of Issue Issue Expiry out-

Share options granted to directors options date price II date standing

Wiese 000 000 26/09/2002 270 26/09/2012 000 000

COMPANY

76

186

253

350

2262 2603

140 821
95 118

183 149

418 088

1844 1515

354 111

354 111

111

359

354 111

40

ANNUAL
REPORT
2010



COMPANY GROUP

2010

2OOO

18.3 Reconciliation of tax rate

280 280 South African normal tax rate 280 280
280 280 Net adjustment 457 287

280 280 Exempt income/non-deductible expenses 293 278
Creation of tax losses 15 06
Other adjustments 01 03
Prior year taxation 18.0

Effective tax rate 177 07

18.4 During the year provision for taxation amounting
to 325 589 was reversed The release was as result

of tax assessments issued by local tax authorities for

subsidiary registered in Switzerland

18.5 Exempt income and non-deductible expenses mainly
relate to the fair value gains and losses on financial

assets at fair value through profit and loss and the

gains and losses from fair value adjustments on invest

ment properties

18.6 Credits in respect of secondary tax on
18 025 18 025 companies STC at year-end 521 266

802 The utilisation of the STC relief of 152

Discontinued operations
In the prior year the company sold 465 million Instore plc

shares reducing the effective holding in that company to

159% which holding has been classified as financial asset

with effect from this date

127

2009 2010
ROOO ROOO

2009

OOO

802

18.7

19

calculated at current rates is dependent on

the future distribution of dividends in the

companies concerned

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss

carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the

related tax benefit through future taxable profits is

probable The group did not recognise deferred income

tax assets of 218 million 2009 19 million in respect

of losses amounting to 263 mijlion 2009 265 mil

lion that can be carried forward against future taxable

income
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20 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the

profit attributable to equity holders of the company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in

issue during the year excluding ordinary shares pur
chased by the company and held as treasury shares

20.1 Profitflloss from continued operations attributable to

equity holders of the company
Loss from discontinued operations attributable to equity

holders of the company

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 000

Basic and diluted earnings/iloss per share of pence

From continuing operations

From discontinued operations

The group has no dilutive potential ordinary shares

20.2 Headline earnings/loss

Headline earnings/loss per share of pence

Based on headline earnings/loss of

Profit/loss attributable to equity holders of the company
Loss on disposal of investments

Net gainsIloss from falr value adjustment on investment

property

Profit/loss on disposal of investment properties

Profit on sale and scrapping of property

plant and equipment

Ibtal tax effects of adjustments

Ibtal non-controlling interest effects of adjustments

and the weighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue of 000

21 Cash flow information
21.1 Non-cash items

Depreciation

Profit on sale and scrapping of property

plant and equipment

ProfitIloss on disposal of investment properties

Net gain/loss on fair value adjustment on

investment properties

Fair value gains/losses on financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

Loss on disposal of investments

Impairment of loans

Ilnreaiised foreign exchange gains

Impalrment of interest in subsidiary

Foreign currency translation differences

COMPANY GROUP

2009 2010 2010 2009

11000 ROOO OOO OOO

371 17 112

382

371 19 494

346 762 347 330

07 56

07 49
07

04 31

304 10 892

2371 19494
1236

048 460

21 154

12

236

346 762 347 330

299 692

319 297

234

21

046

908

13

13

25

12
154

460

164

1236

472

300011 1297 2741 16499



COMPANY GROUP

2009 2010 2010 2009
ROOO ROOO OOO OOO

21.2 Changes in working capital excluding the effects of

business combinations

Trade and other receivables 587 165
Inventories

246 726 Trade and other payables 490 583

246 726 101 748

21.3 Thxation paid

Thxation per profit or loss 354 111
Decrease/increase in taxation payable 363 54

57

22 Capital commitments
The group had no capital commitments at

28 February 2010 2009 nil

23 Operating lease commitments
The group leases retail outlets and offices under

non-cancellable operating lease agreements

The group also leases certain plant and machinery

under cancellable operating lease agreements

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

Expenditure to be incurred within year 156 50

lb be incurred thereafter but within years 245 161

lb be incurred after years 923 952

3324 3163

24 Contingent liabilities

24.1 Possible additional tax as result of the groups
international restructuring and the related cessation

of local permanent establishment of Tradehold

Ltd in the 2003 financial year being queried by
57 351 57 701 the South African Revenue Service refer 24.2 868 028

Potential liability regarding past group

restructuring refer 24.3 854 500

57351 57701 7722 8528

24.2 The group operates internationally and is therefore

exposed to varying degrees of uncertainty relating

to tax matters It accounts for income tax based on
advice from its external professional advisors Based

on this advice the group accrues for either llabihty

or include the tax exposure as part of contingent habiJities

24.3 The group is engaged in litigation involving transaction

dating back to 2003 The above amount is an estimate

of the potential liability to the group

25 Borrowing powers
In terms of the articles of association of the company the

borrowing powers of Tradehold Limited are unlinilted
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26 Financial risk management
26.1 Financial risk factors

The risk management function within the group is carried out in respect of financial risks Financial risks are

risks arising from financial instruments to which the group is exposed during or at the end of the reporting

period Financial risk comprises market risk including currency risk interest rate risk and other price risk

credit risk and liquidity risk The primary objective of the financial risk management function is to establish risk

limits and then ensure that exposure to risks stay within these limits

The groups overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks

to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the group
Risk management policies are approved by the boards of operating subsidiaries

26.2 Market risk Foreign currency exchange risk

The group operates internationally predominantly within the Hinted Kingdom whilst certain functions are carried

out in Switzerland Luxembourg and South Africa The group is therefore exposed to various forms of foreign

exchange risk primarily with respect to the Swiss Franc South African Rand and the Euro

Foreign exchange risk arises in respect of those recognised monetary financial assets and liabilities that are not

in the functional currency of the respective group entity

The exposure to foreign exchange is managed and monitored by group treasury The groups policy is not to

enter into any currency hedging transactions

Sensitivities to market risks included below are based on change in one factor while holding all other factors

constant In practice this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the factors may be correlated for example

changes in interest rates and changes in foreign currency rates

The functional currency of the company as weli as its principal subsidiaries is Pound Sterling

26.2.1 Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below details the groups sensitivity to change in exchange rate between Pound Sterling

and the Swiss Franc These percentages represent managements assessment of the possible changes in the foreign

exchange ratee at the respective year-ends No other currency would have meaningful effect

If Pound Sterling would depreciate 5% against the Swiss Franc net profit would be reduced by 203 million

2009 net loss would be increased by 203 million

26.2.2 Exchange rates

The exchange rates used by the group to translate foreign entities statement of comprehensive income and

statement of financial position are as follows

2010 2010 2009 2009

Average Closing Average Closing

rate rate rate rate

SA Rand R1259 R1185 R1496 R1424

Swiss Franc SFr170 SFr163 SFr190 SFrl66

Euro 6113 6112 6121 112

Uncovered foreign liabilities

The group had the following uncovered foreign liabilities

2010 2010 2009 2009

Foreign Pound Foreign Pound

currency equivalent currency equivalent

Swiss Franc liabilities 95m 5Sm 105m 63m

26.3 Market risk Interest rate risk

The groups income and operating cash flows are exposed to interest rate risk due to the extent of borrowings and

market related interest rate arrangementswith the exception of borrowings of 2388 million 2009 2384 million

bearing interest at fixed rates varying between 11% and 67% 2009 between 13% and 66%
The group continues to review its interest rate risk and the policies in place to manage the risk No derivative

instruments have been entered into to manage interest rates during the year

Trade receivables and payables are interest-free and have settlement dates within one year

For the current year 100 basis point increase in interest rates across the year would have resulted in an

increase in the net profit of the group of 201 million 2009 201 million reduction in the groups net loss whilst

100 basis point reduction in interest rates would have resulted in reduction in the net profit of the group of

201 million 2009 201 millionincrease in the groups net loss
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26.4 Market risk Price risk

The group is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the group and classified as at

fair value through profit or loss No financial instruments or derivatives have beeu employed to hedge this risk

The group is not exposed to conunodity price risk

5% increase in the value of investments would increase the groups net profit by 804 million 2009 803 million

reduction in the groups net loss whilst 5% decrease in the value of investments would reduce the net profit by

804 million2009 803 minion increase in the net loss

26.5 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to financial instrument wili cause financial loss for the other party by

failing to discharge an obligation

The group has no significant concentrations of credit risk Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents

held at banks and trade receivables including rental receivables from lessees

26.5.1 Trade and other receivables

The group has policies in place to ensure that rental contracts are entered into only with lessees with an

appropriate credit history

Thnant rent payments are monitored regularly and appropriate action is taken to recover monies owed or if

necessary to terminate the lease

Deposits refundable to tenants may be withheld by the group in part or in whole if receivables due from the

tenant are not settled or in case of other breaches of contract

26.5.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash balances are held with major banking groups with high credit ratings The groups treasury policy is

designed to limit exposure to any one institution

At year-end cash has becn invested as follows

Cash and cash equivalents neither past due nor hnpalred

2010 2009

Bank rating as per Fitch Ratings million million

F1 64 44
F2 02 68
F3 40 50
Total 106 162

The maximum amount of credit risk that the group is exposed to is 8128 million 2009 8187 million and has

been calculated as follows

2010 2009

million million

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents 106 16

26.6 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the group could not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or

at reasonable price Group treasury is responsible for liquidity funding as well as settlement management
In addition liquidity and funding risks related processes and policies are overseen by management Tradehold

manages its liquidity risk on consolidated basis based on business needs tax capital or regulatory considera

tions if applicable through numerous sources of finance in order to maintain flexibility Management monitors

the groups net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows Such forecasting

takes into consideration the groups debt financing plans and covenant compliance
The group will seek to refinance certain long-term loans with maturities less than one year At present

refinancing in particular with regard to large amounts is possible at potentially higher borrowing costs

The table below analyses the companys and the groups financial liabffities into relevant maturity groupings

based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contracted maturity date The amounts disclosed in

the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows and include both interest and capital Balances due within

12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant
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COMPANY GROUP

Less than Between

year and years

Rmulion Rmillion At 28 February 2010

21 Trade and other payables

Interest-bearing liabilities

Loans from subsidiaries

Less than Between

year and years

million million

26.7 Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying amounts net gains and losses recognised through profit and loss total interest income total interest

expense and impairment of each class of financial instrument are as follows

The fad value of all amounts except for long-term borrowings with fixed interest rates equal their carrying amounts

46

ANNUAL
REPORT
2010

14 Trade and other payables 22

Interest-bearing liabilities 168 281

71 Loans from subsidiaries

Less than Between Less than Between

year and years year and years

Rmillion Rmillion At 28 February 2009 million million

57

21

120 350

Total Total

28 February 2010 interest interest

Assets Endilion income expense

Impair- Carrying

ment value

Net

gains

losses

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss 77 19
Loans

Loans to directors 01 01 01
Other 01

Trade and other receivables 20
Cash and cash equivalents 03 106

Liabilities Cnlillion

Secured long-term borrowings 22 265

Short-term borrowings 01 147
Trade and other payables 22

Total Total Net

28 February 2009 interest interest linpair- Carrying gains

Assets 2miilion income expense ment value losses

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss 57 72
Loans

Loans to directors 01 02 01
Other 01 12 01

Trade and other receivables 02 24

Cash and cash equivalents 09 162

Liabilities Emillion

Secured long-term borrowings 24 314
Short-term borrowings 02 98
Trade and other payables 21



COMPANY GROUP

2009 2010 2010 2009
ROOO ff000 000 OOO

The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-current

borrowings are as follows

Carrying amount 26 533 31 440
Fair value 27 163 32 322

The fair values are based on cash flows discounted using

rate based on the borrowing rate of 52% 2009 53%
All financial instruments are classified as loans receivable

payable at amortised cost except listed investments which

are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit

and loss

26.8 Capital risk management
The groups objectives when managing capital are to safe

guard the groups ability to continue as going concern

in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits

for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital

structure to reduce the cost of capital

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure the

group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to share

holders return capital to shareholders issue new shares or

sen assets to reduce debt

The group monitors capital on the basis of the loan to

value LTV ratio 65-75% loan to value ratio LTV is tar

geted subject to the boards view of markets the prospects
of and risks within the portfolio and the recurring cash

flows of the business

The policy complies with loan covenant that limits the

borrowings to not more than 70%-80% of the value of the

underlying security This ratio is calculated as net debt

divided by carrying amount of investment properties and

owner-occupied properties at year-end Net debt is calculated

by the group as total borrowings less short-term borrow

ings secured by cash deposits

The LTV ratios at 28 February 2010 and at 28 February

2009 were as follows

Total borrowings 41 211

Less short-term borrowings secured by cash deposits 817

Net debt

Investment property and owner-occupied properties

LTV ratio

35 394

51 125 46 445

69% 75%

41 264

302

34 962
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Tradehold Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 28 February

COMPANY GROUP

2009 2010 2010 2009

ROOO ROOO OOO OOO

26.9 Fair value estimation

Effective March 2009 the group adopted the amendment

to TFRS for financial instruments that are measured in the

statement of financial position at fair value This requires

disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the follow

ing fair value measurement hierarchy

Quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities level

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level

that are observable for the asset or liability either directly

that is as prices or indirectly that is derived from

prices level

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data that is unobservable inputs

level

The following table presents the groups assets that are

measured at fair value at 28 February 2010

Level

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 679 671

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active

markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance

sheet date market is regarded as active if quoted pric

es are readily and regularly available from an exchange

dealer broker industry group pricing service or regu

latory agency and those prices represent actual and

regularly occurring market transactions on an arms

length basis The quoted market price used for financial

assets held by the group is the current bid price
The carrying value less impairment provision of trade

receivables and payables are approximately their fair values

The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes

is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash

flows at the current market interest rate that is available to

the group for similar financial instruments

27 Related parties
Related party relationships exist between the company its

subsidiaries and the directors of the company All inter

group transactions have been eliminated in the annual

financial statements and there are no other material trans

actions with related parties Details of the remuneration of

the directors and their shareholding are disclosed elsewhere

in the annual financial statements The executives of all

operating companies is seen as key management personnel

The compensation of key management consist of

Salaries and short-termltermination benefits

Key management compensation was paid to

Executive directors

Other employees

940 775

742 576

198 199

940 775

48

ANNUAL
REPORT
2010



28 Share incentive scheme
28.1 In terms of the rules of the Tradehold Share Incentive Trust the trustees are empowered to acquire and allocate

shares and to grant share options which in total may not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the company

28.2 At 28 February 2010 the trustees of the Tradehold

Share Incentive Trust had 706 307 2009 706 307 shares and share options under their control There were no

movements during the accounting period

29 Business combinations
On 13 July 2009 the group obtained an additional 65% of the share capital of Clumber Park Hotel LLP CPH for no

consideration At that date the fair value of the net assets and liabilities in CPH equalled zero and consequently there

is no goodwifi on the additional 65% investment The acquired business contributed revenues of 553 687 and net

loss of 92 666 to the group for the period from July 2009 to 28 February 2010 If the acquisition had occurred on

March 2009 group revenue would have been increased by 075 750 and profit decreased with 52 500

Details of net assets acquired are as follows liOOO

Property plant and equipment

Trade and other receivables

Inventories

Trade and other payables

Fair value of acquired interest in net assets of subsidiary

30 Prior year adjustments
Restatement of headline loss

The calculation of the headline loss had been restated as follows

Loss attributable to equity holders of the company
for the year ended 28 February 2009

Loss on disposal of investments

Legal and professional expenditure

Impairment of loans

Net loss from fair value adjustment on investment property

Loss on disposal of investment properties

Profit on sale and scrapping of property plant and equipment

Total tax effects of adjustments

Total non-controlling interest effects of adjustments

Headline loss for the year

637

232

30

899

As

Restated reported

OOO OOO

Number of ordinary shares in issue 000

Headline loss per share pence

19494 19494
1236 1236

600

472

7460 7460

154 154

12 12

236 236

10 892 820

347 330 347 330

31 28
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TRADEHOLD

Notes continued
Tradehold Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 28 February

31 Segment information
The group adopted IFRS Operating segments This has resulted in an increase in the number of reportable

segments presented The segments are reported in manner that is more consistent with the internal reporting

provided to the chief operatin decision maker 00DM
The 00DM is the person or oup that allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating

segments of an entity The gro has determined that its 00DM is the board of directors

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the board of directors in

making strategic decisions

The board of directors conside the business based on the following operating segments

Property retail

Property commercial

Property offices

Property leisure

Property other

Treasury

The operating segments deny their revenue primarily from rental income from lessees and revenue from hotel

operations All of the groups siness activities and operating segments are reported within the above segments
The board of directors assesses the performance of the operating segments based on measure of adjusted

operating profit i.e trading profit This measurement basis excludes the effects of non-recurring expenditure from

the operating segments such as restructuring costs legal expenses impairment of loans and losses on disposal of

investments The measure also excludes the effects of gains/losses on derivative financial instruments The results

of discontinued operations are not included in the measure of trading profit

The amounts provided to the board of directors in respect of total assets and total llabilities are measured in

manner consistent with that of the annual financial statements These assets and liabilities are allocated based

on the operations of the segment and the physical location of the asset As all assets and llabilities have been

allocated to the reportable segments reconciliations of reportable segments assets to total assets and of reportable

segments liabilities to total liabilities are not presented

The segment information provided to the 00DM for the reportable segments for the year ended 28 February 2010

is as follows

Property

liOOO Retail Commercial Offices Leisure Other Treasury Group

Thtal segment revenue 162 303 437 881 783

Trading profit/loss 285 525 271 402 287 156 448

Thtal assets 30 462 094 146 973 685 18 513 72 873

Additions to investment properties 459 459

lbtalllabilities 22358 6844 3309 3152 1511 6263 43437

The segment information provided to the 00DM for the reportable segments for the year ended 28 February 2009

is as follows

Property

2OOO Retail Commercial Offices Leisure Other Treasury Group

Ibtal segment revenue 842 640 390 553 425

Trading loss/profit 812 918 270 970 277 203 044

Ibtalassets 24041 8747 6350 7318 1356 23066 70878

Additions to investment properties 760 614 384

Thtal llabilities 21 903 950 309 170 883 552 43 767
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Interest in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries

Moorgarth Holdings Ltd

Investments

Moorgarth Holdings Ltd Incorporated in England and Waies

Moorgarth Group Ltd Incorporated in England and Wales

Other

Investments

Tradegro Sari Incorporated in Luxembourg
Moorgarth Properties Luxembourg Sari Incorporated in Luxembourg
Tnstore Hoidings Sari Incorporated in Luxembourg
Clumber Park Hotel LLP Incorporated in Engiand and Wales

Percentage
shares held

by group

2009

100

85

Note

General information in respect of subsidiaries as required in terms of paragraphs 69 and 70 of the Fourth Schedule to

the South African Companies Act is set out in respect of only those subsidiaries the financial position or result of which are
material for proper appreciation of the affairs of the group full list of subsidiaries is available on request
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100

36 071 420

10 000

i2 500

60 000

100

85

100

35



TRADEHOLD

Property portfolio analysis
Tradehold Limited and its subsidiaries at 28 February

Ogden Road Industrial Estate Doncaster

J4 IŁchnology Park Skehnersdale

Constantine Street Oldham
Bath Road Felling

Cookridge Street Leeds

Wilniingtone Grove Leeds

Southfield Harrogate

Cookridge Street Leeds

Westbourne Centre Barrhead

Peel Retail Park Wisbech

Jennings Middilesborough
Westbourne Centre Barrhead

Bitterne Southampton
Boundary Road Prestwick

High Street Bromsgrove
119 125 Martgate Berwick-Upon Tweed

High Street Johnstone

Main Street Baillieston

High Street Irvine

Dalryxnpal Street Girvan

223 High Street Perth

AU the above properties are located in the United Kingdom The average annualised rental yield amounts to 91%

Industrial

Leisure

Offices

Retail
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Property schedule Gross Average
lettable Rental rental Gross

area per esca- lettable

scruare square lation area Revenue

Location Sector feet foot

Industrial total 193 127 413

Industrial 65 000 431
Industrial 43 000 581
Industrial 44 265 350
Industrial 40 862 274

341 94

Leisure 637 1657 12 102

Offices total 85 966 743 25 152 135

Offices 63 000 556
Offices 150 1497
Offices 616 1692
Offices 200 778

Retail total 280 176 931 35 495 669

Retail 91 600 1086
Retail 66 200 850
Retail 30800 778
Retail 16 828 1269
Retail 18 000 747
Retail 17590 654
Retail 6450 1589
Retail 734 965
Retail 900 671
Retail 6467 572
Retail 650 850
Retail 957 722

1000 1000

Tenant profile

Large nationals large listeds government and major franchisees 40

Nationals listeds franchisees and medium to large professional firms 37

Other 23

100

There are tenants in Category

Vacancy profile based on gross lettable area

Industrial 115
Leisure

Offices 01
Retail 34

150

Lease expiry profilebased on revenue Within Within Within There-

year years years after

Industrial 30 76
Leisure 29 151
Offices 09 123
Retail 18 13 28 523

Lease expiry profilebased on gross lettable area Within Within Within There-

year years years after

75 161
46 23
15 131

20 03 32 344


